BANK BIC NAMIBIA LIMITED
(REGISTRATION NUMBER :2015/068¢2)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018




BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Namibia Dollar (N3), unless otherwise indicated)

CONTENTS
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY FOR THE FINANCIAL REPORTING

DIRECTORS' APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AUDITORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' REPORT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNEXURE A: RISK REPORT

Page 1

Page
2-3

10
11
12
13

14-42

43-47



BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the annual financial statements of Bank BIC Namibia Ltd,
comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, the statement of prafit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significont accounting policies ond other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Finonclol Reporting Standards (“IFRS”)
and in a manner required by the Companies Act of Nomibia and Namibian Banking Institutions Act.

The Directors are required by the Companles Act of Namibia to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and
integrity of the reloted financial information included in this report. It is their responsibliity to ensure that the financial statements fairly present
the state of offairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial period and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in
conformity with IFRS. The Bank's independent external auditors have audited the financial statements and their report is included in this report.

The Directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal centrol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with
IFRS and are based upon oppropriate accounting policies consistently applled and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements ond
estimates.

The Directors’ responsibility also includes maintaining adequate accounting records ond an effective system of risk manogement, as well as the
preparation of the supplementary schedules included in these financial statements,

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the Bank and place
considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities, the Board sets
standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the proper deleqation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures. and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an dcceptable
level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Bank and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in
ensuring the business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management is on
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Bank. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Bank
endeavours to minimize it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

Comprehensive insurance cover Is in pldce as required per BID 14.

The Directors have made an assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and believe that the Bank will operate as a going
concern in the year ohead.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the internal control system provides
reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of
internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss,

INTERNAL CONTROLS

As noted in the Directors' Responsibility statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of the
financial statements ond for maintaining adequate accounting records and for maintaining the integrity of related financial information as well as
for designing, implementing and mointaining internal controls to ensure that the financial statements are free from material misstatements. The
Directors are also responsible for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management and systems of internal
financial control.
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BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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ASSET CLASSIFICATION, SUSPENSION OF INTEREST AND PROVISIONING

The Bank has complied in all mat with the requirements set out In BID 2 with regards to asset classification, suspension of interest

and provisioning. The extgpof' auditors have ngt identified nor reported instances of noen-compliance with BID 2 during the reporting period.
>

DIRECTORS' APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL'STATEMENTS e

The ﬂnancz/statemer ts set out on pages 10 W‘Mamjmved by the Board of Directors and are signed on their behalf by:
s >

May 20}*0 //

Windhoek,

y

Jaime Pereira .~
Chairman_~~
F 3 -
rd A

i

Lindsay Crawford
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Bank BIC Namibia Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Bank BIC Namibia Limited (the Company) as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

What we have audited

Bank BIC Namibia Limited’s financial statements set out on pages 7 to 47 comprise:

the directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2018;

the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies,
excluding Annexure A: Risk Report which is unaudited.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Revised July
2016), parts 1 and 3 of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants I nternational Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (Revised July
2018) (Code of Conduct) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of
financial statements in Namibia. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code of Conduct and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing
audits in Namibia.

PricewaterhouseCoopers , Registered Auditors, 344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek, P O Box 1571, Windhoek, Namibia
Practice Number 9406, T:+ 264 (61) 284 1000, F: +264 (61) 284 1001, WWw.pwe.com.na

Country Senior Pariner: R Nangula Uaandja
Pariners: Louis van der Riet, Anna EJ Rossouw, Chantell N Husselmann, Gerrit Esterhuyse, Samuel N Ndahangwapo, Hans F Hashagen, Johannes P Nel,
Trofimus Shapange, Hannes van den Berg
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Retraction and re-issue of audit opinion

We draw attention to Note 26 to the financial statements which indicates that the previously issued
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, on which we issued an auditor’s report
dated 11 December 2019, have been revised and reissued. As explained in Note 26, this is to reflect the
effects of the correction of the calculation of risk weighted assets. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled “Bank BIC Namibia Limited Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2018”. The other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of Namibia, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

e .
Q\mm&b ol ospert:
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Registered Accountants and Auditors

Chartered Accountants (Namibia)
Per: R Nangula Uaandja

Partner

Windhoek
Date: 26 May 2020
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

REGISTRATION NUMBER
2015/0682

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION
Repubiic of Namibia

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Bank BIC Namibia Limited Is a registered bank which conducts banking services to fts clients in Namibia. It provides transactional services such as
retaif and corporate services, including trade finonce. It also provides loans for residential, commercial ond asset based finance, as well as foreign
exchange and security transactions,

The banking licence approval was obtained on 31 May 2016 and Bank BIC Namibia Ltd started operations on 20 June 2016.

HOLDING COMPANY AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The holding company of Bank BIC Namibia Lid is Bank BIC Nomibia Holdings Ltd, a company registered ond incorporated in Nomibia, which owns
95% of the issued share capital {see note 16 of the annual financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

The results and financial position of the Rank for the year ended 31 December 2018 are fully disclosed in the financial statements set out on
pages 10 1o 47 of this report.

INSURANCE
Comprehensive insurance cover is in place as required per BID 14.
SHARE CAPITAL

Bank BIC Namibia Ltd has authorised share capital amounting to 300 000 000 ordinary shores of NS 1 each, as detailed In note 16 of the annual
financiol statements. Thera were no changes in share capital for the current year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Copital expenditure incurred during the financial yeor amounted to NS 6,0m (2017: NS 87m), as disclosed in note 9 of the annual financial
statemants.

DIVIDENDS
No dividends were declared for the yeors ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

BOARD GF DIRECTORS

Non - Executive Directers Nationality Date appointed  Date of resignation
Fernando Teles (Chalrman) Portuguese 13-Jul-15
Jaime Pereira {Vice - Chairman)} Portuguese 13-jul-15
Hugo Teles Portuguese 13-Jul-15
Anpe Shilengudwa Nomibian 01-May-17

Executive Directors

Jorge Veiga Angolan 13-jul-15 10-Oct-17
Lindsay Crowford Namibion 01-Aug-15
Mauro Anselmo Cipriano Rogerlo Angolan 06-Dec-18
Ricarde forge G Cortez Dos Santos Angolan 06-Dec-18
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REGISTERED OFFICE AND ADDRESS

Dr Agostinho Neto Road, Unit 6
Aussplannplotz

Windhoek

Namibia

POSTAL ADDRESS

P.0. BOX 5001
Aussplannplatz
Windhoek
Naomibia

SECRETARIAL SERVICES

CRVIW Secretarial Service (Pty) Lid
29 Field Street, Ausspannpiatz
P.0 box 97401, Maerua mall
Windhoek, Namibia

AUDITORS

PwC Namibia

344 Independence Avenue, Windhoek
P QO Box 1571,

Windhoek Namibia

GOING CONCERN

During the year ended 371 December 2018, the Bank incurred a loss of NS 26,957,041 and as at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the Bank
exceeded its total liabjlities by NS 216,642,138, The Bank Is in a loss-making position as it is stilt in o stort-up phase,

The directors have assessed the Bank’s ability to cantinue as o going concern. In doing so, the directars have considered, among other factors, the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the expected financial performance of the Bank. The directors forecast losses to incregse during 2020,
resulting mainly from a decrease in interest income. Although It has strategles in place to gain more market shores over the next few years, the
uncertainties around the COVID-19 pandemic poese additional challenges for the implementation of those strategies. Therefore, in the short-term,
the directors plan to finance a significant portion of the expected operating losses from its unrestricted cash and cash equivalent balance, As at
371 March 2020, the ratio of the Bank's unrestricted cosh and cosh equivalent balances to its total liabilities was approximately 1.28. This Is
sufficient to cover all liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and to cover a significant portion (approximately 390%) of the forecast losses. The remaining
portion of the forecast operating losses is expected to be covered by other assets of the Bank which include foans and advonces to clients.

The directors have also considered the sensitivity of the above assessment to possible changes in expected scenarios, Based on thelr sensitivity
analysis, even If the avallable funds/cash and cash equivalent balances are reduced by 45% , the Bank will stifl be able to settle jts liabilities and
finance its expected operating Josses for at least the next 12 months from the dote of this report. This Is due to the fact that the Bank has an
undrown credit facllity from Banco BIC Cabo Verde and Banca BIC 5.A., amounting to NS 822 million (Euro 40 million). Refer to note 29,2 for the
terms and conditions refating to these facilities. The directors have assessed the avallability of the undrawn credit facility, toking into occount the
conditions (including covenants) required to access such facility. They are of the view that the undrawn facility will be available until December
2020,

The Bank is in complionce with all the requirements of Bank of Nomibia and the directors are of the view that there are no evenis or
circumstances that would prevent the Bonk to continue operating and trading for at least the next 12 manths from the date of this report.

Bused on the above, the directors consider it appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis,

Page 8



EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO YEAR END
Refer to note 28 for the director’s assessment of the impact of subsequent events.

DIRECTOR’S INTEREST
Directors have the following interest in Bank BIC Namibia Limited:

% Capital No. of shares Amount
Shareholder structure
Fernando Leanidio Mendes Teles 1,000% 3 000 000 3000 000
Telesgest B.V, 0,875% 2625000 2625 000

Directors have the following interest in the Holding company (Bank BIC Namibia Holdings Limited) of Bonk BIC Namibia Limited:

% Capital No. of shares Amount
Shareholder structure
farnando Leonidio Mendes Teles 20,0% 200 200
Telesgest B V. 17.5% 175 175

Page &



BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Amounts expressed in Nomibia Dollar (NS), unless otherwise indicated)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 2018 2017
ASSETS
Cash ond balonces with central bank E 11 227 389 2354 202
Bolances due from other banks 4 46 516 720 22 047 638
Financial ussets 5 4931 385 72274 781
Derivatives 6 2831236 .
Loans and advances to financial institutions 7 80 306 387 40827 772
Loans and advancas to clients 8 193 604 963 112636 421
Other tangible assets g 18 340 251 16 146 913
Intangible ossets 10 15215870 17 920 580
Other assets 11 1410289 1 878 408
TOTAL ASSETS, NET 374 384 490 286 086 715
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits from financial institutions 12 29 309 860 8554851
Loans from financial institutions 13 82 405 189 -
Deposits from clients 14 38 885 041 24 317 485
Other labilities 15 7 142 262 9492 022
TOTAL LIABILITES 157 742 352 42 364 368
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 16 300 000 000 300 000 000
Credit Risk Reserve 27 1938 150 .
{Accumulated loss) (85 296 012) {56 277 653}
TOTAL EQUITY 216642 138 243722 347
TOTAL LAIBILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 374 384 490 286 086 715

Page 10




BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
(Amounts expressed in Namibia Dollor (NS), unless otherwise indicated)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 2018 2017
interest and similar income 20903 398 20807 941
Interest and similar expenses {1182 662) {662 173)
Net interest incotne 17 19720736 20145 768
Credit impairment losses 7.5/8,5 1093631 {1 083 395}
Netinterest income after impairment of loans and advances 20814 367 19062 373
Non-irterest income 18 1 608 939 1883329
Fea and commission revenue 1416277 1369 981
Fee and commission expanse {395 6498) {333 125)
Foreign Exchange gains and losses 588 420 846 473
Income from operations 22 423 366 20 945 702
Stoff costs 19 {18716 061) {17 300 839)
Operating expenditure 20 {20 760 446) {18 296 006)
Depreciation ond amortisation 21 (9 963 900) {8401 311)
Loss before taxation (26 957 041) {23 052 454)

Income tax expense
Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive joss for the year

Page 11
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BANK BIC NAMIBIALTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Nomibia Dollar (NS), unless otherwise indicated)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Other
reserves -
credit risk Accumulated
Share Capital reserve loss Total Equity

Balances at 31 December 2016 300 000 600 - {33 225 199) 266 774 801
Loss for the year - - (£3 052 454) {23052 454)
Balances at 31 December 2017 300 000 000 - (56 277 653) 243722 347
Balance as at 1 January 2018 - {IFRS 9)
Tronsfer of BID 2 general provision to credit
risk reserve - 1938150 (1938 150) -
IFRS 9 transitional adjustment - ECL - - (123 168) {123 168)
Loss for the year - - (26957 041) (26 957 041)
Balances at 31 December 2018 300 000 000 1938150 {85 296 012) 216 642 138
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BANK BIC NAMIBIA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Namibia Doligr (NS). unless otherwise indicoted)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Notes 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities
Income from services and commissians 1416277 1 369 981
Interast and simifar income 24 868675 18 484 331
interest and commissions expense {1578 360) (995 298}
Cash paid to suppliers and employeeas {39 416 500) (35 596 845)
Gains/losses on foreign exchange 329 459 846 473
Cash utilised in operations 25 (14 380 456) (14 891 358)
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets
Investment in securities 64176619 45584 117
Loans and advances to finencial institutions {40 296 939 37 182 685
Loans and advances o clients {79 878 254} (103 939 501)
Other Assets 468 119 {235 409}

(70010911) (36 299 466)

Increase/{decrease) in operating liabilities

Deposits from financial institutions 20 755 009 8 554 851
Deposits from clients 14 567 545 10531 946
Other liabilities {2 349 760) {7 745 957)

32 972 794 11340 840
Net cash flow utilised in operating activities (37 038 116) {24 958 626)

Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to property, plant and equipment {6 019 006) (8721 976)
Additions to computer software and development cost {3433 522) {4904 227)
Net cash utilised in investing activities {9452 528) (13 626 203)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loans from finoncial institutions 82 405 189

increase share capital -

Net cash generated from financing activities 82 405 189 -
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 35914 544 (38 584 829)
Effects of exchange rote changes on cash and cash equivalents (2572 275)

Cash and cash equivolents ot beginning of the year 24 407 840 62 986 669
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 57 744 109 24 401 840

Composition of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and balances with central bank 3 11227 389 2354 202
Bolances due from other banks 4 46 516 720 22 (047 638
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 57 744 109 24 401 840
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amaunts expressed in Namibia Dellar (NS}, unless otherwise indicated)

2,1

2,21

2,2,2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
INTRODUCTION
Bank BIC Namibio Limited (hereinafter aiso referred to as "Bank’}, was incorporated in Namibia, on the 13 day of july of the year 2015, compliant

with the reguirements of section 180 of Companies Act, 2004, under the registration number 2015/0682 and started jts activity on june 20,
2016.

The Bank Is o traditional commercial bonk, based in Agostinho Neto Road, Unit 6, Ausspannplatz, Windhoek, whose corporate purpose is
commercial and retail banking, providing services such as deposits acceptance, savings accounts, commercial and personal loans ond mortgages.
Additionally, the Bonk offers services such as foreign exchange transactions and trade finance.

The Bank has currently three branches, two in Windhoek and the other in Walvis Bay.

BASIS OF PREPERATION AND SUMMARY OF MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Prasentation

The financial statements of Bank BIC Namibia Ltd are prepared in accordonce with and comply with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS"), adopted by the Internotional Accounting Stondards Board ("IASB"), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") of the IASB, and the requiremerts of the Namibian Companies Act and Namibian Banking Institutions Act. The
annual finoncial statements have been prepared on the historicol cost basis.

Standards and Interpretations not yet effective

The Bank has adapted all standards and interpretations that were effective for the current yedr. The adoption of these standards did not have
any significant effect on the financial position or resuits from operations, cash flows or disclesures,

AT the date of approval of these financial statements, the following standards and interpretations were issued but not yet effective:

Standard Pronouncement Effective date

IFRS 16 - Legses Original issue 1 January 2018

Amendinents resulting from Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle (income tax consequences of
JAS 12 - Income taxas dividends 1 january 2019

A reliable estimate of the impact of the adoption of the new standards, amendmemnts and interpretations for the Bank hos not yet been
determined. The bank’s estimated gross up is expected to be approximately.

Increase in right if use asset 16,3 million
Increase In accumulated depreciation &,9 miifion
Increase in lease lability 12,1 mitfion
Increase on profit/loss

Depreciation 2,1 million
Finance costs 1,4 mitlion

The bank has established an IFRS 16 working group and detalled project plan, identifving key responsibilities ond milestones of the project. The
bank intends to apply the modified retrospective approach to IFRS 16. As g lessee, the bank elects to use a number of proctical expedients. Under
this approach the bank does not restate its comparatives but recognises the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS16 as o adjustment to equity at
the beginning of the adoption period,

Changes in accounting policies

The acceunting policles are consistent with these reported in the previous year except as required In terms of the adoption of the following:
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
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22,2

2,3

24

2,5

2,51

2,511

Changes in accounting policies {continued)

Adoption of new and amended standards effective for the current financial period

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (IFRS 15) with effect from 1 January 2018, replaces the existing revenue standards and the
related interpretations. The standard sets out the requirements for racognising revenue that applies to all contracts with customers (except for
contracts that are within the scope of the standards on leoses, insurence contracts or financial instruments). The core principle of the standard is
that revenue recognised reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for the transfer of promised goods or
services to the customer. The standard incorporates o five step analysis to determine the amount and timing of revenue recognition. The
company adopted IFRS 15 on 1 january 2018 and, as permitted by IFRS 15, did not restate its comparative financial results. The standard does
not apply to revenue assoctated with financial instruments, and therefore does not impact the majority of the company and company’s revenue.

IFRS 3 with effect from 1 January 2018, replaced 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (1AS 39).

IFRS 9 introduced new requirements which included an expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model and new requirements for the clossification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9, adopted on 1 january 2018, impacted the company and company’s results upon transition. The
impact to the company and company’s reserves on transition to IFRS 9 materially relates to IFRS 9's ECL impairment requirements, IFRS 9's
classification and measurement requirements resuited in an immaterial impact to the company and company on transition. Refer to the IFRS 9
transition disclosure for more detail,

Accirual basis

The Bank odopts the accrual basis of accounting. Therefore, profits and losses are recorded as they are generated, regardless af the time when
they are received or paid,

Conversion of Balances and Transactions in Foreign Currency

The accounts of the Bank are prepored in accordonce with the currency used in the ecanomic environment in which it operates (referred to os
“functional currency”). The results and financial position are expressed in Namibio Dallars, the Junctional currency of the Bank.

In the preparation of the financial statements, transactions in foreign currency are recognised on the basis of the reference exchange rates in
force on the transaction dates. Monetary gssets and liabilities denamingted in foreign currency, at each balance sheet date, are converted into
functional currency at the exchange rate in force. Non-monetary assets measured ot fair value are converted on the basis of the exchange rate In
force on the last measurement date. Non-monetary assets carried at historicaf cost, including intangible assets, continue to be recognised at their
original exchange rates.

Exchange differences arising on conversion are recognised in profit ond foss for the year, upless arising on non-monetary financial Instruments
recognised at fair value, such as shares clossified as avollable-for-sale financial assets which are recognised in a specific equity heading until
disposal,

Financial instruments

Loans and advances to clients and accounts receivable

IFRS @ - accounting policies for financial instruments
Initial Measurement

Amortised cost
A debt instrument that meets both of the following conditions {other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss);

« Held within a business model whose objective is to hold the debt instrument (financial asset) in order to colfect contractual cash flows; and
» The contractual terms of the finoncial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount owtstanding.

Fair value through 0CI
Includes:;

* A debt instrument that meets both of the following conditions (other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss):

* Held within a business modef in which the debt instrument {financial gsset) is managed ta both collect contructual cash flows and sel financial
assets; and
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2,511

2,512

Inittal Measurement {continued)
The contractual terms of the financial osset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

This assessment includes determining the objective of holding the asset and whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
tending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are not considered de minimis and ara inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the financial asset is classified os fair volue threugh profit of loss - default.

Deasignated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are designated to be measured at fair value to eliminate or significontly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

Fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets that are not classified into one of the above mentioned financiol asset categories.

Subsequent measurement
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

Amortised cost
Amortised cost using the effective interest method with interest recognised in interest income, less any expected credit impairment losses which
are recogrised as part of credit impairment charges.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
agsset of financlal tiability to the gross carrying amount of a financiol asset o to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculotion does not
consider expected credit losses and inciudes transaction costs, premiums o discounts and fees and the points paid or received that are integral 1o
the effective interest rate.

When the bank revises the estimates of futwre cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective financial assets or financial liobilities s adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognised into profit or loss.

Assets that are held for coflection of contractual cosh flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest {'SPPF),
ond that are not designated at FVPL. Are measured at omortised cost. The carrying omount of these assels Is adjusted by any expected
impairment recognised and measured.

Fair value through 0Cl

Debt instrument: Fair value, with gains ond losses recognised directly in the fair value through OCl reserve, When a debt financiol asset Is
disposed of, the cumulative fair volue odjustments, previously recognised in OCl, are reclassified to the other gains and losses on financial
instruments within non-interest revenue,

Interest income on a debt financial asset is recognised in interest income in terms of the effective interest rate method. Dividends recelved are
recoghised In interest income within profit or loss.

Equity instrument: Fair value, with gains and losses recognised directly in the fair value through OCl reserve. When equity financial assets are
dispased of. the cumulative fair value adjustments in OC! are reclassified within reserves to retained Jncome,

Dividends received on equity instruments are recagnised in other revenue within non-interest income.

Designated at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value gains and losses (including interest and dividends) on the financiol asset are recognised in the income statement as part of other gains
and lasses on finoncial Instruments within non-interest revenue.,

fFalr value threugh profit or loss - default

Fair value gains and losses (including interest and dividends) on the financial asset are recognised in the income statement as part of other gains
and losses on financial Instruments within non-interest revenue.
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2,5,1,3 Impairment
ECL is recognised on debt financial assets classified as at either amortised cost or fair value through OC!, financial guarantee contracts that are
not designated at fair value through profit or loss as well os loan commitments that are nejther megsured at falr value through profit or loss nor
are used ta provide a loan at a below market interest rate,

The measurement basis of the ECL of a financial asset Includes assessing whether there has been a SICR at the reporting date which Includes
forward-looking information that is avaitable without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
Jorecasts of future economic conditions. The measurement basis of the ECL, which is set out in the table that follows, is measured us the
unbiosed and probobility-weighted omount that is determined by evoluating a range of possible outcomes, the time valua af money and forward-
looking information,

Stage T
A 12-month ECL is calculated for financial assets which are neither credit-impaired on origination ner for which there has been a SICR.

Stage 2
A lifetime ECL atlowance is calculated for financial assets that ore ossessed to have displayed a SICR since origination and are not considared low
credit risk,

Stage 3 (credit impaired assets)
lifetime ECL is calculated for financial assets that are assessed to be credit impaired. The following criteria are used in determining whether the
finonciol asset Is impaired:

« defoult

+ significant financial difficulty of borrower and/or modification

« probabliity of bankruptcy or financial reorgonisation

« disappearance of an active market due to financial difficulties

Key components of the impairment methodology are described as follows:

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
At each reporting date the company assesses whether the credit risk of its exposures has increased significantly since initlal recognition by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset.

Credit risk of exposures which are overdue for more than 30 days are also considered to have increased significantly.

Low credit risk

Exposures are generally considered to have a low credit risk where there is o low risk of default, the exposure has a strong capacity to meet its
contractuial cash flow obligations and adverse changes in economic and business conditions may not necessarily reduce the exposure’s ability to
Tulfil its contractual obligations.

Default
The company’s definition of default has been aligned te its internal credit risk management definitions and approaches. A financiai asset is
considerad to be in default when there Is objective evidence of impairment. The fallowing criteria are used in determining whether there is
objective evidence of impairment for financial assets or compony’s of financial assets:

« significant financial difficuity of borrower and/or madification (i.e. known cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower)

« g breach of contract, such as default or delinguency in interest and/or principal payments

» disappearance of active market due to financigl difficulties

* ft becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

« disappearance of an active market due to financial difflculties

 where the company, for econaimic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, grants the borrower a concession that the
company would not otherwise consider,

Exposures which are averdue for more than 90 days are olso considered to be in defoult.
Forward-looking information
Forward-looking informatien is incorporated into the company’s impairment methodology calculations and in the company’s assessment of SICR.

The company includes all forward leoking information which is reasenable and available without undue cost or effort. The information will
typically include expected macro-economic conditions and factors that are expected to impact portfolios or individual counterparty exposures,
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2,5.1,3 Impairment {continued)

Write-off
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Financial assets which are written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities.

ECLs are recognised within the statement of financiol position as follows:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (including loan commitments)

Recognised as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the asset (company of assets). Where the impairment alfowance exceeds the gross
carrying amount of the asset {company of assets), the excess is recognised as a provision within other liabilities.

Off-balance sheet exposures (excluding fean commitments)
Recegnised as @ provision within other liabilities,

Financial assets measured at fair value through 0Cl
Recognised in the fair vaiue reserve within equity. The carrying value of the financial asset is recognised in the statement of financial position at
fair value.

IAS 39 - Accounting Paolicies for financial instruments

Held-to-maturity
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable poyments and fixed maturities that management has both the posftive intent and
ability to hold-to-maturity.

Loans and recefvables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not Quoted in an active market, other than those classified as at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale.

Held-for-trading

Those finoncial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling In the near term fincluding all derivative financial assets), those that form

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of o recent actual pattern of short-
term profit taking.

Included are commodities that are acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future or generating a profit from fluctuotions in price
or broker-traders’ margin,

Designated at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are designated to be measured at falr volue in the following instances:
« to efiminate or significantly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise
« where the financial assets are managed and their performance evaluated and reported on a fair value basis
« where the financiol asset contains one or more embedded derivatives thot significantly modify the financiol asset’s cash flows.

Available-for-sale
Financial assets that are not clossified into one of the abovementioned financial asset categories.

Subsequent measuremeant

Subsequent ta inftial measurement, financial assets are clossified in their respective categories ond measured at either amortised cost or fair
value as follows:

Held-to-maturity and loans and receivables

Amortised cost using the effective interest method with interest recognised In interest fncome, less any impoirment losses which are recognised
as part of credit impairment charges, Directly ottributable transaction costs and fees received ore capitalised and amortised through interest
income as part of the effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale

Fair value, with gains ond losses recognised directly in the available-for-sale reserve untll the financial asset is derecognised or impalred.
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2,5.1,3 Impairment {(continued)

Interest income on debt financiol ossets is recagnised in irterest income In terms of the effective interest rate methad, Dividends received on
debt fequity) avoilabie-for-sale financial assets are recognised in interest income {other revenue} within profit or loss,

When debt (equity) avaitable-for-sale financial assets are disposed of, the cumulgtive fair value odjustmants in OCI are reclassified to interest
income {other revenue).

Heid-for-trading
Fair value, with gains ond losses arising from changes in foir value {including interest and dividends) recognised in trading revenue.

Deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss
Fair value, with gains and losses recognised In interest income/{other revenue) for all debt/(equity} financia! assets.

impairment

A financial asset Js impaired if abjective evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after initiol recognition which has a negative effect on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset thot can be estimated reliably. The company assesses ot each reporting date whether there
is obfective evidence that a financial asset which is either carried at amortised cost or classified as available-for-safe is impaired as follows:

Held-to-maturity and foans and receivables {‘omortised cost’)
The following criteria are used in determining whether there Is objective evidence of impairment for loans or company’s of loans:

« known cash flow difficulties experienced hy the borrower

= a breach of contract, such os default or definquency in interest and/or principal payments

« breoches of loan covenants or conditions

* It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation

* where the company, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial difficulty, grants the borrewer a concession that the
company would not otherwise consider.

The company first assesses whether there s objective evidence of impoirment individually for foans that are individually significant, ond
individuatly or collectively for loans that are not individugily significont. Non-performing laans include those loans for which there is identified
objective evidence of impairment, such as o breach of a material loan covenant or condition, as well as those loans for which instalments are due
and unpoid for 90 days or more. The impairment of nonperforming foans takes inte account past foss experience adjusted for changes in econormic
conditions and the nature and level of risk exposure since the recording of the historic losses.

When a loan carried at amortised cost has been Identified os specifically impaired, the carrying omount of the loan is reduced to an amount equal
to the present value of Its estimated future cash flows, including the recoverable amount of any collateral, discounted ot the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the loan Is reduced through the use of a specific credit impairment account and the loss is
recognised as a credit impairment charge in profit or loss.

Increases in toan impoirments and any subsequent reversols thereof, or recoveries of amounts previously Impaired {including Joons that have been
wrltten off), are reflected within credit impairment charges in profit or loss. Subsequent to impairment, the effects of discounting unwind over
time ags interest income.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of collateratised financial assats recognised on an amortised cost basis
includes cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs of obtaining ond selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable,

If the company determines that no objective evidence of impoirment exists for an individually assessed toon, whether significant or not, it
Includes the loon I a compony of financial loans with similar credit risk characteristics ond collectively assesses for impairment. Loans that are
individuaily assessed for impairmertt and for which an impairment loss is recognised are not included in a colfective assessment for impairment.
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2,5,1,3 Impairment {continued)

Impairment of company’s of loans thot are assessed collectively js recognised where there is objective evidence that a loss evenl has occlirred
after the initial recognition of the company of loans but before the reporting date. In order to provide for latent losses In a company of loans that
have not yet been identified os specifically impaired, a credit impairment for incurred but not reported lasses is recognised based on historic loss
patterns and estimated emergence periods (time period between the loss event and the date op which the company identifies the losses).
company’s of loans are also impaired when adverse economic conditions develop after inftiol recagnition, which may impact future cash flows. The
carrying amount of company’s of loans is reduced through the use of a portfolio credit impairment account and the loss Is recoghised as a credit
impairment charge in profit or loss.

Previously impaired loans ore written off ance all reasonable attempts at coflection have been made and there is no realistic prospect of
recovering outstanding amounts.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale debt instruments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the instrument below
jts cost and for equity instruments where there is information about significant changes with an adverse effect on the environment in which the
isstier operates that indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered.

When an available-for-sale asset hos been identified as impaired, the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition price
ond the current fair volue, less any previously recognised impairment fosses on that financial asset, is reclassified from OC} to profit or loss, within
interest income {other revenue} for debt (equity) instruments. If, in a subsequent period, the amount relating to an impairment loss decreases and
the decrease con be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss Is reversed through
interest income for available-for-sole debt instruments. Any reversal of an impairment loss in respect of an available-for-sale equity instrument is
recognised directly in OCl,

Reciassification of financial assets are permitted only in the following instances:

Reclassifications are made at foir value os of the reclossification date, Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables, hald-to-maturity and ovailable-for-sale categaries ore determined at the reclassification date. Subsequent changes in estimates of
cash flows (other than credit impairment changes} adjust the financial asset’s effective interest rates prospectively, On reclassification of o
trading asset, ail embedded derivatives are reassessed and, if necessary, accounted for separately.

Held-to-maturity

where the company is to sell more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments, the entire category would be tainted and
reclossified os avallable-for-sale assets with the difference between amortised cost and fair value being accounted for in OCI,

Available-for-sale

The company may choose 1o reclassify finoncial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables if the company, at the date of
reclassification, has the intention and ability to hold these finoncial assets for the foreseeable future or unth maturity.

Held-for-trading
The company may elect to reclassify non-derivative financial assets out of held-for-trading category In the following instances:

if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term and the financial osset would not otherwise have met the
definition of loons ond recejvables, it is permitted to be reclassified only in rare circumstances If the financigl asset is no longer held for the
purpose of selling it in the neor team ond the financial asset would have met the definition of loans and receivables, it is permitted to be
reclassified if the company, of the date of reclassification, has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable Jfuture or
until maturity.

Equity Instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity fram the isster’s perspective; that s, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and thot evidence g residual interest in the issuer's net gssets.
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2,52

Equity Instruments (Continued)

The Bank subsequently measures afl equity instruments at fair vajue thraugh profit or loss, except where the Group’s monagement has elected, at
Inftial recognition, to frrevacably designate an equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. The bank’'s policy is to
designate equity Instruments as FVOCI when those investments are held for purposes other thon to generate investment returns. When this
election s used, fair value goins and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently reclgssified to profit or loss, inciuding on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impalrment losses) are not reported separately from other changes in fair value, Dividends, when representing
o return on such investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other incame when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Gains and Iosses on equity investments are FVPL are included in the ‘net profit or loss’ line in the statement of profit of loss,
Modification of loans

The bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the bank assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantiolly different to the original terms.

If the terms ore substantially different, the Bank derecognises the originol financial asset and recognises a new’ asset at fair value and
recalculotes a new effective rate for the asset, The date of renegotiation Is consequently considered to be the date of inftial recognition for
impafrment colculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Bank alsg assesses whether the new finoncial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especiaily in circumstances
where the recognition was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally ogreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount ore also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in derecognition, and the group recalculgtes the gross
carrying amouit based on the revised cash flaws of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or foss in profit or loss. The new gross
carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the origingl effective interest rate,

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereaof, are derecognised when the contractual rights to recejve the cash flows from the ossets have expired, or
when they have been transferred and ether (i} the Bank transfers substantiolly all the risks and rewards of ownership, or {ji} the Bank neither
transfers nor retains substantially ail the risks and rewards of ownership and the group has not retained control,

Derivatives

Derivative financiol instruments comprise of forward ogreements (forward exchange cantract) designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships,

Standard derivative contracts are valued using market accepted models and quoted parameter inputs,

Derivatives are initiolly recognised at fair volue on the date on which the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value Is negotive,

As permitted by IFRS 9, the company has elected not to apply hedge accounting.

Valuation technique Observable input Valuation and level

Forward agreements Discounted cash model Market discount | Spot Prices of A forward curve is used to
rate and curves | the underlying calcuiate future cash flows and
then discounted using a
discount curve over the
contractual period.

Guarantees provided and frrevocable commitments

Guarantees issued and irrevocable commitments are recorded In off-balance sheet accounts by the amount at risk. Interest, commission, fees and
other related income are recorded in the statement of Income over the period of the operations.
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2,5,4

Credit impairment [osses on loans and advances

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank conducted individual analysis te identify signs of impairment in its credit portfolio. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the Bank makes judgements as to whether there Is observable
doto indicating o measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from Jts credit portfolio,

As a result of the periodic impairment tests, the Bank constitutes impairments to cover recoverability risk of credit operations and reduce the loan
book to its expected recoverable amotint,

When, for o given credit transaction, the recoverable amount at the reference date is greater than the recoverable amount previously calculated,
and this amount was less than the book value, the Bank reverses the impairment. Impairment reversals are recorded in the income statement,

Financiat liabilities

IFRS 9 - accounting policies for financial instruments

Subsequent to initial measurement, financial liabilities are classified in their respective categories and meosured at efther amartised cost or fair
value as follows:

Amortised cost
Amortised cost using the effective interest method recognised in interest expense.

Deslignated at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value, with goins and losses arising from changes in fair value fincluding interest and dividends but excluding fair value gains and losses
attributable to own credit risk} are recognised in the other gains and losses on financial instruments as part of non-interest revenug,

Fair volue gains ond losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognised within OCl, unless this would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in which case the own credit risk changes are recegnised within trading revenue,

IAS 39 - Accounting Policies for financial instruments

Nature

Held-for-trading

Those financiol liabilities incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term (including all derivative financial liabiiities) and
those that form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actuol
pattern of short-term profit taking.

Designated at fair value through profit or less
Financial liabilities are designated to be measured at fair value in the following instances:
« to eliminate or significantly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise
« where the financiol liabifities are managed and thelr performance evaluated and reported on o fair value basis

« where the financial liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the financiol asset’s cash flows.

At amortised cost
All other financial liabilities nat included in the above catagories.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to injtial measurement, financiol liabilities are classified in their respective categories and measured at either amortised cost of fair
volue as follows:

Amortised cost
Amortised cost using the effective interest method with interest recognised in interest expense,

Other (IFRS 9 and JAS 39}
Offsetting (IFRS 9 and IAS 39}
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2,5.4,2

2,544

2.6

IAS 39 - Accounting Policies for financial instruments {continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised omounts and there is an intention to settle the gsset and the lability on a net basis, or 1o realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enfarceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparties to the transaction.

Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale ore meosured at foir value, with the exception of equity instruments, not listed on an active market, and whaose
fair value cannat be measurad reliably, which remain recorded at cost. Goins and losses arising from revaluation are recorded directly in equity,

under "Revaluation reserves”.

At the time of sale, or in the case of impairment, the accumulated voriations In fair value are transferred to income or casts for the vear, and
recorded under the headings "Results of financial assets available for sale” or “Impairment of other finonciol assets net of reversals and

recoveries’, respectlvely. Foreign exchange gains or losses of monetary assets are directly recorded in the profit and loss statement.
fFor the purpose of determining the earnings of sale, financial assets are valued of weighted average purchase cost.
The interest of debt instruments classified under this category and the differences between purchase cost and nominal volue (premium or

discount) are determined according to the effective rate method and recorded under the statement of prafit and loss heading “Interest ond similor
income”.

Revenue from variable vield securities Is recorded as income under the caption “Financial assets” when it Is established that the Bank is entitled
ta recefve this income.

Fair value
Pursuant to IFRS 13, falr value corresponds to the price that would be received to sell an asset or poid to transfer o liability in an orderly

tronsaction between market participants at the measurement date. On the date of acquisition, or at the beginning of on operation, the fair value
is generaily the value of the transaction,

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities correspond to other credit institutions and clients deposits and labilities Incurred for the payment of services rendered or
the purchase of assets, falling under the heading "Other liabilities”,

Other financial liabilities are recorded on the contracting date at their respective fair value, less costs directly attributable to the transaction.
Subsequently, they are valued at amortised cost and the interest, when applicoble, Is recognised in accordance with the effective rate methad.
Property, plant & equipment

These assets are recorded at purchase cost, less any accumulated depreciation or impairment. Repair and maintenance costs, ond other expenses
associated with their use, are recognised as costs for the year, under the caption “Operating expenditure”,

Depreciation Is calculated using the stroight-line method to allocate thelr cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, which are:

Useful life
Leasehold improvements 8 years
fFurniture and equipment 8 years
IT equipment 4 years
Other Installations 8 years
Security equipment 8 yaars
Motor vehicles 5 years

Depreciation is recorded in the statement of profit and loss for the year.
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Intangible assets

This caption essentlolly covers expenses related to the acquisition, development or preparation of software used in the development of the
Bank’s activities.

Intangible assets are recorded at acquisition cast, lass amartisation and accumulated impairment Josses,

Amortisation is calcufuted using the stralght-line method to ollocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
corresponding to a period of 3 years.

Computer software

Computer software development costs that are clearly associated with an identifiable and unique system, which will be controlled by the company
and have a prebable future economic benefit beyend one year, are recognised as intangible assets. intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses from the date thot the assets ore available for use. Expenditure subseguently
incurred on computer software Is capitalised only when it increcses the future economic benefits embadied in the specific asset to which it
refates,

Development cost
The bank recognises development cost incurred on Industry projects relating to the national payments system. Ameortisation is recognised in
operating expenses from the date that the asset is available for use.

Usaful life
Computer software 3 yaars
Development costs 3 years

Nen-financial assets are derecognised on disposal or when no futtre economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. The gain or loss
on derecognition is recagnised In profit or loss and is determined as the difference between the net disposal praceeds and the carrying amount of
the non-financial asset.

Leases

Finance leases - lessee
Leases, where the company assumes substantially ol the risks and rewards incidental to ownership, are classified os finance leases.

The leased asset is capitalised at the inception of the leose at the lower of the falr volue of the leased asset and the present
value of the minimum lease poyments together with an associated fiability to the lessor.

Refer to nen-finoncial assets accounting policy for the treatment of the leased asset.

Lease payments less the interest component, which Is colculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease or the company’s incremental
borrowing rate, are recognised as a capital repayment which reduces the liability to the lessor,

A legse finance cost, determined with reference to the interest rate Implicit in the lease or the company’s incremental borrowing rate, Is
recognised within interest expense aver the lease period.

Operating leases - lessee
All leases that do not meet the criterio of o financial lease are classified as aperating leases.

Accruals for unpaid fease charges, together with o straight-fine lease asset or liobility, being the difference between actuol payments and the
straight-tine fease expense are recognised.

Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are recognised in eperating expenses on a straight-fine
hasis over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are expensed as they are incurred.

when an operating lease Is terminated before the lease perlod has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of a penalty is
recognised as operating expenses in the period in which termingtion takes ploce.

Expenses related to software maintenance are accounted for as costs for the year in which they are incurred.
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2.8

2,9

2,10

2,10,1

Interest income and expense
Interest Income and expense (with the axception of borrowing costs that are capitalised on qualifving ossets, that is assets that necessarily toke

a substantiol period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale and which are not meosured at fair value) are recognised in net interest
income using the effective interest method for all interast-bearing financial instruments. In terms of the effective interest method. interest is
recognised at ¢ rote that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial Instrument or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, ta the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liabitity. Direct incremental transaction costs
incurred and origination fees recelved, including loon commitment fees, as a result of bringing margin-yielding assets or libilities into the
statement of financial position, are capitalised to the carrying amount of finoncial instruments that are not at fair velue through prafit or loss and
amortised as interest income or expense over the life of the asset or Hability as part of the effective interest rote,

When a financiol asset is clossified os specifically Impoired (before 1 january 2018) or as Stoge 3 impaired (after 1 January 2018), interest income
Is calcuiated on the Impaired value {gross cairying amount less specific impairment) based on the original effective interest rate The contractual
interest Income on the gross exposure js suspended and is only recognised In interest income (before 1 January 2018} and other interest (after 1
January 2018} when the financial asset is no tanger specifically impaired (before 1 january 2018) or is reclossified out of Stage 3 (after 1 Jonuary
2018).

Non interest income

Fee and commission revenue, including transactional fees, account servicing fees, investment management fees, sales commissions and
placement fees are recognised as the related services are performed. Loan commitment fees for loans that are not expected to be drawn down
are recoghised on a straight-fina basis over the commitment period.

Income taxes

The Bank Is subject to income tax in accordance with tax laws enocted at the end of the financial year. Current tax Is colcufated considering a
percentage of 32% hased on toxable net income for the yeor, which may differ fram the book value of the vear profit.

Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely for set off against future taxable profit within the respective reporting periods, if the entity does
hot cease activity.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it Is probable that future taxable amounts
will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax liabilities are booked for olf toxable temporary differences.

Current tax Is recognised in profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to ftems recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
aquity,

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision Is constituted when there is a present liability (legal or constructive} arising from past events which are likely to imply the future
disbursement of funds, and which may be reliobly determined. The amount of the provision corresponds to the best estimate of the disbursable
value to settle the liability as at the reporting date.

If the future disbursement of funds is not probable, this is classified as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are merely disclosed, unless the
possibility of their materialisation is remote,

Critical accounting estimates and most refevant judgemental aspects in the application of accounting policies

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and ossurnptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and fiabilities ot the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period bosed on monagement’s best knowledge of cuirent events and actions. Actual
results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

The estimates bearing most impact on the financial statements of the Bank inciude the following:

Determination of impairment tosses for loans

Impairment losses for loans granted te customers are determined in accordance with the methodology defined in Note 2.5.3,

Thus, the Bank complies with the requirements defined by Bank of Nomibia and, whenever deemed necessary, recognises impairment losses so
that its estimate is reflected in the risk of uncollectibility assaciated with Clients,
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2,10,1

Determination of impairment losses for loans {continued)

The Bank considers that the impairment losses for loans determined on the basis of the methodology referred to in Note 2.5.2 adequately reflect
the risk ossociated with jts portfollo of Joans granted to clients,

2,10,2 Assessment of collateral in credit operations

2,11

212

Collateral in credit operations, such as property mortgages, assumed the maintenance of the real estate market conditions, during the life-cycle of
the operations, and correspond to the best fair value estimate of the afore-mentioned collateral at the reporting dote.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-term, highly liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, These assets are held
to collect contractual cash flows.

ECL for cash and cash equivalents s zero.

IFRS 9 - transition

Background

With effect from 7 january 2018, IFRS 9 replaced 1AS 39. IFRS 9 introduced new requirements which Inciuded an ECL impoirment
model and new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets as follows:

ECL impairment requirements - =00 HERS 9's ECL Impainment model’s requirements represented the most material IFRS 9 tronsition
P R LA TS Jmpact for the company. The ECL model applies to financial assets measured at efther amortrsed

-.i-Jeost or at fair value through other comprehensive Income (FVOCJ‘) toan comm:tments when there Is ;

ﬁ: a present commitiment 10 extend cred:t (um‘ess these are measured at fmr value through pmfrt or
“iloss (FVTPL}) and guarantees o . T

Tz—month ECL Howeuer where the erume is Iess than 12 months hfenme ECL wm be measured
for the fmanaal asset, A loss aﬂowance for full hfeume EC Lis requ:red fora flnancial asset If the
Cl’edtt r.lsk af that fmanc!al mstrument has mcreased sfgmf;cantty smce mmaI recogmtron, o R

Classification and measurement .. - HFRS 9 requires gl financial assets to be classmed and meastired on the bas:s of the entity’s *
A e T T busrness model for manuglng the ﬁnunclcu‘ assets and the cuntmctua! cash ﬂow charactensncs of
the fmancra! assets : S : : RN o

}' ] The uccountrng for fmanaal ussets diﬁers in uar!ous other areas to the IAS 39 requrrements such :
as. embedded derrvatwes and the recognrtron af farr value adjustments m OCI S

3 .jf AH changes in the fa:r va.lue af fmancral habthtres that are desagnated at FVTPL due ta changes In ;
'3 awn credit risk are required to be recogmsed within OCI. S - e

Adoption of IFRS 9

The company retrespectively adopted IFRS 9 on 1 Jonuary 2018 with an adjustment to the company's opening 1 January 2018 reserves ond, as
permitted by IFRS 9, did not restate {1s comparative financial results. Accordingly, the compony's previously reported financiol resutts up to 31
December 2017 are presented in accardance with the requirements of 1AS 39 and for 2078, and future reporting periods, are presented In terms
of IFRS 3.

IFRS 9's ECL requirements

The most materig! IFRS 9 transition impact far the company is that of IFRS 9's new ECL requirements which results in the earlier recognition of
credit impairment provisions primarily as o result of the drivers outlined in the table befow. This Impact was solely as a resuit of the adoption of
IFRS 9 and is not as a result of changes in the credit quality of the company’s loan exposuies,

12-month ECL for pen‘orming Ioans S :._:-'g!FRS 9 contains @ minimum 12-month ECL for exposures for which there has not been o significant
{stage 1 ) i ___=increase i credtt risk (SICR). whereas IAS 39 required credit Impalrments to be recogmsed onfy Vi
i joltowing the tdentf_ﬁcanon oj ob}ectrve ewdence of rmpa:rment : R Rt
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Sigmfrcant mcrease m credn‘ rfsk (SICR) Bho A !.«fe nme ECLis recogmsed jor aﬂ exposures far wh:ch there has been a SJ'CR bemg a materlal
(stoge 2) R AR S change in the probabiiity of defoult, since origination, ' : :
fo-__t_}q_!qn_bé_ Sheet_ékposures LIRS 9s. scope includes off-balance sheet exposures, such o5 unutilised loon commjtments (except .-
T e thase loan comm:tments at fair ualue through ,DfOfII and Iass) bankers acceptances guomntees, i
7 Land letters of credit, . o - OERE : v

Lifetime model work éqt .r_equi{ement SRS ~din terms of determmmg ECL for stage 1 and 2 exposures where there is a probabmty of defautt :

DL e potentlal loss from a lifetime perspecﬁue is considered, wmch would include the probabmty of -

i recovery post defauh‘ and subsequent re-default, For stage 3 exposures, being exposures that are .
D ejther in default or where defau!t is Immment thfs would Indude cons:demnon of cures. and
. isubsequent re-default, - 5 : S i - R

Form_jrd }_o_ék_r’ng égonqmic_ éexpectat_Ions S “1JFRS 9 requmas an adjustment for forward loakmg econom:c expectatlons fn the determlnat:on of
L e and i the measurement of the ECL, - - 2 o

IFRS 9 key financial impacts

IFRS 9 ECL IFRS 9 at 1 January 2018
1AS 39 at 31
December 2017
Loans and advances 112636 421 (123 168) 112513 253

Key management assumptions

In preparing the financial statements, estimates and assumptions are made that could materially affect the reported amounts of assets and
Expected credit loss (ECL) on financial assets - IFRS 9 drivers

For the purpose of determining the ECL, Bank BIC Namibia iimited performed an individual ECL and provisioning review. Collateral per loan was

analysed.

€CL measurement period
The ECL measurement period for stage 1 exposures is 12-months.

A loss alfowance over the full lifetime of the financiol asset is required if the credit risk of that financial instrument has Increased significantly
A lifetime measurement period is applied to all credit impaired {stage 3} exposures,

The measurement periods for unutilised loan commitments utilise the same approach as an-balance-sheet exposures.

Incorporation of forward looking information in ECL measurement

Forward looking econamic expectations are Included in the ECL where odjustments are made based on the COMpany's macro-economic outlook,

Default
Refer to Note 2.5.3

Write off policy
An impaired loan is written off once all reasonable attempis at collection have been made and there is no material economic benefit expected

The Company’s forward-looking econemic expectations were applied in the determination of the ECL at the reporting date:

Namibia
A negative outlook at the beginning of 2019, this Is based on economic downturn in Namibla, Projections estimate g return To economic growth in
2020 enwards.

Sensitivity Analysis of allowances for credit losses

The following table shows a comparison of the Bank’s ollowances for credit losses on non-impaired exposures under IFRS 9 as at 31 December
2018 based on the probability weightings of three scenarios with allowances for credit losses resufting from simulations of each scenario
weighted at 100%.
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Sensitivity of the collateral value
" The collateral valuation is a key driver of the ECL. The table below shows the sensitivity of o 10% change in the colloteral valuation {os at 31
December 2018):

€L % difference
Base 210055
10% increase in post-haircut collateral 172 338 -18,0%
10% decrease in post-haircut collateral 276 763 31,8%
Sensitivity of the probability of defauit
Assumption of sensitivity:

ELC % difference
Base 210055
10% increase in PDs 230 188 96%
10% decregse in PDs 189922 -9,6%
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5.1

5.2

21

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

Lash
Current account with central bank

2018 2017
10829 434 2127734
397 955 226 468
11227 389 2 354 202

The caption “Current Account with Central Bank” includes the deposits related 1o the requirements of Bank of Namibia Act No. 15 - Bonking Institutiens to maintain

minimum reserve balance, The value of the minimum reserve balance is calculated considering o percentage of 1% of the average doily amount of total deposits

and any other liobilities from elients. Cosh en hand ond mondatary reserve deposits are non-interest earning.

BALANCES DUE FROM QOTHER BANKS

Deposits with local banks 13870104 6374575
Depaosits with forelgn banks
- Banco BIC Portugués, S.A. (Note 23,3) 32646 616 15673 063
46 516 720 22 047 638
Placements with other bonks are colleble en demand.
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trading asset
Treasury bills - Sovarelgn 4905 642 69082 260
Accrued Interast 25 744 3192 521
4931 385 72274781
Clossified os:
Net financiol investment measured at omortised cost 4 931 385 J2 274 781
As at 21 December 2018, Treasury bills earn inferest at the averoge rates of 7,715%, (2017. 8.52%) respectively,
Reconciliation of expected cradit losses for debt financial investments measured at amortised cost
Net
Impoirments Impaired
Opening ECL 1 Totol tronsfers  raised / (re- amounts Exchange and other Closing ECL 37
Januory 2018 between stages  fegsed) written aff movements Dec 2018
Sovereign - - - - -
Stage 1 - - -
Stoge 2 -
Stage 3 - - - - -
Total - - .
Maturity structure
-0nea yeor or jess 4937 385 72274 781
-Five years or less but aver ane year - -
-Gver five yeors - -
4 531 385 72 274781
DERIVATIVES
Forword agreements 2831236

Derivotive originates from forward agreement entered into with Bank Windhoek Limited, purchose of 5,000,000 Euro for value date, 23rd of May 2019, The
forword agreement is to seftle interbank borrowings from Banco BIC Cape Verde, Refer Note 13, As permitied by IFR5 9, the company hos elected not fo anply

hedge accounting.
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Loans and receivables

Loans ond odvonces to banks!

Central bank

Local bonks

Foreign hanks

- Bonco BIC Portugués, S.A, (Note 23,3}
- Other

Accrued interest

Less credit impoirment (Note 7,5)
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71

2.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8,1

8.2

Loans and receivables (continuad) 2018 2017

As ot 37 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, placements with finoncigl institutions earn interest ot the following average interest rates by currency:

NAD 7.17% 7.69%
ZAR 6,14% 6,00%
2018 R017

Maturity structure

-One year or less 80 306 387 40827 772

-Five years ar less but over one year - -

-Over five years - .
80 306 387 40827 772

Geographical analysis

Namibia B0 306 347 36 466 365
Outside Nomibia - 4 361 407
-Portugaf - 3 465 GOO
-South Africa - 896 407

80 306 387 40827 772

Reconciliation of expected credit losses for debt financial investments measured at amortised cost

Net
Impairments Impaired
Opening ECL T Total transfers  roised / {re- omounts Exchange and other Closing ECL 31
Jonugry 2018 belween slages  legsed) written off movements Dec 2018
Sovereign - - - - - -
Stage 1 - - -
Stoge 2 - - - - - -
Stage 3 - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
impairment of loans and advances to financial institutions
Balonices at the beginning of year {44 000) -
Debis written off - -
Current year charge 44 000 {44 60G)
Bod debts recovered - -
Balances ot the end of the year - {44 000}

The impairment amount was computed using the minimum percentage of 1%, under the terms of Bark of Nomibia BID - 2, for the placements with forelgn banks,
according to instructions received fram the Central Bonk,

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CLIENTS

Category analysis

Mortgage loons 52 4623 343 77935 764
-Individuals 12987 111 9 726 062
-Business 39 476 232 68209 702
Business loons 70217 358 31 051 872
Asset based finance 9554650 23722 789
Overdrafts 60 737 298 2074 952
Persanol loans 557 369 216 387
Gross leans and advances to clients 193 630 018 113651 764
Accrued intetast 204 678 139 471
Deferred income {13 678) (18 298)
Less credit impairment {Note 8,5) {210 055) {1136518)
Net loans and advances to clients 193 604 963 112 636 421

Secteral analysis

Retailers, catering ond accormmadation 58534 448 56 260 575
Construction and reol estate 60 400 752 27838 373
Agriculture, hupting and fishing 55 517839 21001676
Business services 3311753 4561 713
Individuols 5608 970 3 555 921
Transport ond communication 256 256 433 506

193 630018 113651 764
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a3

2.4

8.5

2018 2017
Maturity structure
-0ne year or less 61020933 29828 438
-Five yeors or less hut over one yegar 74 2558679 & 607 760
-0ver five yedis 56 353 466 77 115 566
193630018 113651 764
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no overdue loens and interest.
Reconciliation of expected credit losses for loans and advances measured at amortised cost
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Opening ECL 1 January 2018 113937 9231 - 123 168
Transfer between stages {4652) 3177 1475 -
Transfer (to)/from stage 1 - 4 652 - 4 652
Tronsfer fromé{to) stage 2 {4 652) - 1475 (3177)
Transfer from/{ta) stage 3 - {1 475) - {1 475)
Nat ECL (released) / raised 67 698 11940 7 249 86 887
ECL gue to new loans 118 167 - - 118167
ECL due to matured foans (25 834) {2 690) - {28 524)
ECL change due to transfer between stages - 16118 7 249 23367
ECL due to chonge in LGD 24 635) (1 488) - {26 123)
Subseguent changes in ECL - - -
Change in ECL due to derecognition -
Impaired occounts written-off -
Exchange and other mavements - -
Closing ECL 31 Dacember 2018 176 983 24 348 8724 210056
A reconciliation of the expected credit loss for lnons ond advances, by cioss:
Net
Total transfers impairments €xchange and
Opening ECL1  between raised / Impaired accounts other Closing ECL 21
lanuary 2018 stages (released) written-off movements Dec 2018
Overdrafis 5 629 - 59 483 - 65112
Stage 1 5 468 - 42 525 48013
Stoge 2 141 - 16 958 17 099
Stoge 3 - - - - -
Asset finance 3 925 51302 - - 55 227
Stoge 1 3735 48 959 - - 52 694
Stage 2 190 2343 - 2533
Stage 3 - - - -
Mortgage loans 3 126 - 6235 9 361
Stage 1 2 885 5695 8580
Stage 2 247 540 781
Stage 3 - - - - -
Commercial loans 108 612 - (37 424) - - 71188
Stage 1 101 447 - (34 172) - - 67275
Stage 2 7 165 {3252) - - 3913
Stoge 3 - - - - - -
Personal loans 1 876 - 7 291 - 9167
Stage 1 382 - 39 - 421
Stage 2 1494 {1475) 3 - 22
Stage 3 - 1475 7249 - 8724
Total 123 168 - 86 887 - 210055
2018 2017
Impairment of loans and advances to clients
Batonces at the beginning of the yeor {1 259 686) (37 123)
- General impairments {1136 518) -
- IFRS 3 trensitionol adjustment - ECL {123 168)
-Portfolio impoirment (97123)
Bad debts written off - -
LCurrent year charge - General Provisicn {86 887} {1 039 395}
Lurrent year charge - Specific Provision - -
Tronsfer to credit risk reserves 1136518

Bod debts recovered
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ta

1

12

Impairment of loans and advances to dlents {continued)

Bolances at the end of the year
-General impgirments
-Portfolio impairment

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2018

Camying amount gt 31 December 2017
-ot cost

-accumutated depreciation

Additians

Depreciotion current year (Note 27)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018
-at cost

-accumiiated depreciotion

2017

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016
-at cost

-accumulated depreciation

Additions

Depreciation current yeor (Note 21)
Carrying amount ot 31 December 2017
-at cost

-accumulated depreciation

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2018

Corrying amount at 31 December 2017
-at cost

-gecumulated amortisotien

Additions

Amortisation current year {Note 21)
Carrying amount ot 31 December 2018
-t cost

-accumulated depreciation

2017

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016
-at cost

-grcumulated omortisation

Additions

Transfers

Amaortisation curfent year (Note 21)
Corrying amount at 31 December 2617
-ot cost

-accumulated depraciotion

OTHER ASSETS

Deferred expenses

-IT costs

-Insurance

-Other rents

- Prepaid expenses

Sundry debtors and other receivables

DEPOSITS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Deposits from other banks

2018 2017
{210 055} (1136518}
{210 055} .

- {1136 518)

As ot 31 December 2016, deposits from other bonks correspond to non interest bearing vostro accounts from Banco BIC S.A. {Angola} ond Bonco Keve 5.A.
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Leasehold Furnlture & Other
impr 1] Eguip 1! IT Equipment Instaflatlons Security Equipment Maotor Vehicle Total
6998 174 2 334 944 5676572 953 343 183 880 16 146913
7517945 2879634 B 437 795 1187 296 203 356 - 20 236 087
{518 771) {544 /50) {2 761 224) (243 953) (19 476) - (4 089 174)
2086 751 1348187 14051771 - 204 801 974 096 &6 019006
{rol1613) (401 304) {£ 215 659} {145 662) (33 272) (14 158) (3 B25 668)
8073312 3281827 4 866 084 803 681 355 409 859 928 i6 340 251
9604 696 4227 881 9842 567 1197 2586 408 157 474 096 26 255 093
(1531 384) (946 054) {4 976 883} (393 615) {52 748) {14 158) (7 814 842)
2329 743 2042 314 4121 765 1103 005 73416 - 9670243
2481 898 2290 548 5 454 166 1197296 80 203 - 11 514111
{162 155) {248 234} {1332 401) {94 291) (6 787) {1 843 8606)
5026047 589 148 2983 630 - 123 153 8721976
{357 616) {296 516} (1428 823) {149 662) {12 689) {Z 245 306)
5998174 2 334 944 5676572 953 343 183 880 16146913
7517 945 2 879694 8437 796 1197296 203 356 20 236 087
(519 771} {544 750) (2 761 224) {243 953} {19 476} {4 089 174)
Computer
software Development costs Total
8 711 469 9209111 17 520580
18441 694 920911 27 650 805
(9 730 225) - (9 730 225)
117282 3316 240 3433522
{6 138 232) - (6 138 232)
2690519 12 525 351 15215 870
18 558 976 12 525 351 31084327
{15 B68 457) - {15 BGE 457)
14867 474 4 304 B84 19172 358
18 4471 634 4 304 884 22 746 578
(3 574 220) - (3 574 220)
- 4904 227 4904 227
{6 156 G05) - (6 156 605}
8711 469 9209111 17 926G 580
18441 684 8209111 27 650 805
{9 730 225) - (9 730 225)
2018 2017
972 861 1504 726
- 1254 526
18 180 21180
175 868 151316
778813 77 704
437 428 373 682
1410289 1878 408
29 308 860 8554851
29 309 860 8§ 554 851
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14,2

14,3

15

16

LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Borrowings from other banks {Note 23.3) 82 293 750 -
Accrued Interest 111439
82 405 189

Borrowings frem other banks cansist of loan from Bonco BIC Cobe Verde, S.A. Facilities are denominated in Euro, bear an interast rate of Curibor +1.25%. First drow of the loan was

2018 2017

DEPOSITS FROM CLIENTS
Category analysis
Current accounts 4417518 9543 543
Sovings gocounts 17145471 10331 769
Call accounts 3B95 328 1532 540
Term deposits 13270 000 2857911

38728417 24 265 763
Accrued Interest 156 624 51732

38 885 041 24 317 495
Sectorai analysis
Individuals 30434 338 18 804 620
Agricuiture, hunting ond fishing - 89475 2252 171
Other services 1 255 543 1415607
Conpstruction ond real estate 1716 021 635 685
Retailers, cotering and accommedation 616 142 594 242
Business services 394 661 316 7490
Transport and communication 1140 136 132 594
Manufacturing 3157647 4 566
Mining 4 454 4 538

38 728 417 24 265 763
Maturity structure
-One year or less 38648 027 24 236 373
-Five years or lass but over one year B0 396G 29 390
-Ower five years - -

38728417 24 265 763
OTHER LIABILITIES
Creditors & 779 051 8915643
-Local suppliers 206 471 1012884
-Foraign suppliers & 572 580 7802 759
Accruals 409 188 573087
Deferred income - 1014
Clearing, settlement ond internal accounts 107 836 2268
Indirect Taxes (153 813) -

7 142 262 9492 022

As at 31 December 2018 and 2T December 2017, the amounts within the coption "Foreign suppliers” include initiol costs with the implementation of the fank,

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 37 December 2018 and 3T December 2017, the shore copitol of the Bank was held by the following shareholders:

% Capital Ne. of shares Amount
Shareholder structure
Bank BIC Nomibia Holdings  Limited 95% 285 060 000 285 060 0G0
Other shareholders 5% 15 000 000 15 860 000
100% 300 00¢ 000 300 000 000
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17 NET INTEREST INCOME 2018 2017
Logns and advances to chients 14 280 427 3611 346
Placements with other banks 5020434 5785247
Financial assets {Treasury bills) 1602 542 11411 348
Total interest and simifar income 2090632 398 20 807 941
Depasits from banks and other financial institutions {108 566) (227 B38)
Depasits from clients [1 073 696) {434 335)
-Current Gecounts (774) 4)
-Savings deposit {476 769) (248 129)
-Cali deposits {134 144) (101 363}
-Term deposits (462 003) (84 839)
Total interest and similar expense (1182 662) (662 173)
Net Interest income 19 720 736 20 145 768
Comprising:

Interest income on iterns measured at amortised cost 20903 398 20 807 941
Interest income ot items meastired at fair value through OCt - -
20903 398 20 807 941

18 NON-INTEREST INCOME
For loans to clients 37314 308 708
For services provided 1380472 1059 764
-Mointenonce fees 694 986 533414
-Foreign transaction fees 443512 295 957
-Gther 241974 230 393
For gugrantees provided - 1509 1509
Total fee and commission income 1416 277 1369 981
Tronsoction processing fee {325 598} {333 125)
Total fea and commission expanse {393 698) (333 125)
Gains / {losses) on instruments at foir vaiue threugh profit or loss 588 426 846 473
Total fair value gains/{losses) 588 420 846 473
Total non-interest income 1608 999 1683 329

Foreign exchange gains ond losses refers te gains/{losses) in the Bank's buy/self transactions of foreign currency, in addition to the revaiuation of its foreign

19 STAFF COSTS

Selaries, wages and olfoworces of employees {16512 253) (13 383 202}
Directors’ rernuneration and benafits {1931 873) (3103 164)
Staff training (64 985) (656 350)
Board sitting fees - (70 00Q)
Other stoff costs (206 950} (88 123)

{18 716 061) {17 200 839)

As gt 31 December 2018 ond 31 December 2017, the Bonk had 34 and 21 employees, respectively.
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20

2t

22

23

23,1

23,2

23,3

OPERATING EXPENDITURE

IT costs

Operating lease charges
-Property rental

-Motor vehicles

Prafessionol fees
Communication

Value Added Tax
Advertisement and marketing
Travel and accommaodation
Insurance costs

Auditors’ remuneration

Duties and other

Other expenses

Total operating expenditure

DEPRECIATION AND AMGRTISATION
Depreciotion (Note 3)

Amartisation (Note 10)

TAXATION

Direct taxation

2018 2017
{6 915 176) {4 605 031)
(3 495 503) (3079713)
(2 897 143) (2378 622)

{598 460} {701 091)
(1 249 978) {2 951 733)
(3 450 763) {1927 186)

(255 445) (1613 484)
(1 028 865) (667 748}

(280 468) (597 750)

(681 989) (397 116)

{131 035} {385 269)

{5 500} (135 004)
(3 205 624) (1931972)

(20700 446) ___ (18 296 00B)
(3 825 668} (2 245 306)
{6 138 232) {6 156 005}
{9 953 900} (8401 311)

As the Bank has no taxable incame, no tox expense was recorded in the Bonk's finoncial statements gs at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,

Deferrad tax

As gt 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, no deferred tax asset hos been recognised since, ot the present date, there js Insufficient evidence that there

Tox losses corried forword os at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 amounts to NS 107.286.124 ond NS 56.277.653, respectively,

RELATED PARTIES

Parent company

Bank BIC Namibia Ltd majority shareholder is Bonk BIC Nomibio Holdings Ltd (95%) (2017: 95 %), which is incorporated in Namibio. No single entity or individual

Identification of related parties with whom transactions have occurred

Transactions with directors and shareholders controlled entities are related party transactions.

Relatad party balances and transactions

2018

ASSETS

Bolonces due from ather banks

Loans and advances te financial institutions
Intangible ossets*

Other ossets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from financiol institutions
Loons from financiol institutions
Deposits from clients

Other liabitities

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interast and similar income

interest and similar expense
Directors’ remuneration ond benefils
Operating expenditure

Bank BIC Banco BiC Members of the
MNamibia Portugués, hoard of
Note Holdings Ltd  Banco BiC, S.A. 5.A. Banco BIC Cape Verde directors TOTAL
4 32646616 - 136 409 274
7 - - - - 136 409 274
10 - - 18 441 694 - 117 967 580
1 324317 - - 117 643 263
117 643 263
117 643 263
12 - 28 655 2868 - 80 887 975
13 - - 82 293 750 - 6694 225
14 - - - 121 645 6 572 580
15 - 6283 762 288 818 - B -
- - - - 2152 278
1317 (108 966) (111 439 {1 931 873)
19 - - - {1931873) ]
20 - -
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24

24,1

24,2

25

26

Related party balances and transactions {continued)

Bank BIC Banco BIC
Namibia Portugués, Members of the
Note Holdings Ltd  Banco BIC, 5.4, S.A. board of direciors TOTAL
2017
ASSETS
Balances due from other banks 4 - - 15673 063 15673063
Loans ond advances to financial institutions 7 - - 3 500 000 3 500 000
Intongible vssets* 18 - - 1102 528 1102528
Other ossets 1 210639 - - 210639
LIABILITIES
Deposits fram financiol institutions 12 - 8554 851 - 8554 851
Depasits from clients 14 - - - 85 706 85706
Other liabilities 15 - & 283 762 1512691 - 7 796 453
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Interest gnd simller income 13/17 - - 536 601 - 536 601
Directors’ rernuneration and benefits 19 - - - (3173164 {3173 164}
Operating expenditure 20 - - {637 068} - {637 068)
2018 2017
COMMITMENTS
Undrawn committed funding
Unutilised credit facilities 12 467 000 48 139075
Undrawn pverdraft facilities 6619684 -
Guarantees 2978196

Operating leases

The Bank hos entered into lease agreements aver fixed property (head affice and branches) for various periods. The JSuture minimum lease charges are s follow:

2018 - 2 252 507
2019 2 287 445 2 287 445
2020 2325178 2325178
2021 2 365925 2 365 929
Thereafter 2 102 851 2 102851
9081 403 11333910

For the purpose of this disclosure, lease agreements linked to the Consumer Price Index are considered constant ot each year end date.
CASH UTILISED iN OPERATIONS
Inceme/{loss) before taxation (26 957 041} (23 052 454)
Adjusted for;
-Depreciation ond amortisotion 9 963 900G B 401 311
-Foreign exchonge gainsflosses 2572275 -
-Loan impairment, net of reversals and recoveties 210 055 1083 395
Tronsfer to credit risk reserves {1136 518) -
Accrued interest receivable
-Fingnciol ossets {25 744) {97 338)
-Loans from financial institutions 111 439
-Deposits from financial institutions B18 325 (1103010
-Leans and advances to clients 63825 {123 262}
Other (971)

(14 380 455) {14 891 358)
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The copitol adequocy is managed in terms of the Banking Institutiens Act. 1998 {"Act’). The aim of capitol risk monagement is to ensure that Bork BIC Nomibio

(i} is adeguate to protect its depositors and credilois;

(i) is commensurate with the risk activities and profile of the Bank; ond
(i) promotes public confidence in the Bank and the bonking system.

Copital Is managed under the following definitions:
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Tier 1 {corg) capital
Tier 1 capitatincludes permanent shareholders’ equity {issued and fully poid-up ordinary shares and perpetuol non-cumutative praference shores) plus disciosed

Tier 2 {supplementary) capitat
Tier 2 capital includes asset revaluation reserves; general loon loss pravisiens; subordinated debt; ond hybrid {debt-equity) capital instruments.

Total Quaiifying Capital
Total qualifying capital meons the sum of Tier 1 copital ond Tier 2 copita) after the deduction of investments in and loans to unconselidated financiol subsidiories;

Capital measures

The ratios used for meosuring copital adequacy are:

Leverage (equity) capital ratio fi.e, Tier 1 capitol divided by gross assels; for purposes herein, “gross assets” means total pssets plus general and specific pravisions);
Tier 1 risk-based capitol ratio fi.e. Tier 1 capitat divided by totol risk-weighted assetsy and

Total risk-bused capital ratio (i.e. total quolifying capital divided by total risk weighted assets),

Total risk-welghted capital
Total risk-weighted capital is the total assets reported in fingncigl raturns required to be submitted to the Bank of Nomibia, less intangible assets and the excess of

MEniimum Reguirements

The foifowing minimum ratias shoil apply {unless higher ratios are set by the Ronk) for on individual bank based on criterio set forth befow:

{a) Leverage Capital: the minimum leverage ratio shall be 6,0%, In gccordonce with the Act, if @ bank is pursuing or experiencing significant growth, has inadequate
{b) Tier 1 Risk-Based Lapital: the minimum Tier 1 rotio shall be 7.0%. In accordonce with the Act, if @ bank is pursuing or experiencing significont growth, has
inodequote risk management systems, an inordinate level of risk, or less than satisfactory gsset quolity, management, earnings or liquidity, a higher minimum may
be required;

{c) Total Risk-Weighted Capital: the minimum total ratio sholl be 10.0%. In accordonce with the Act, if o bank is pursting or experiencing significont growth, hos
inadequate risk management systems, an inordinate level of risk, or less thon satisfoctory asset quality, management, earnings or liquidity, o higher minimum may
be requirad. This is expected ta rise in increments of 0.5% per vear from 2018 until the mirimum ratio reaches 14%.

Regulatory Capital {(Unaudited)

2018 2017
Shara capitat 300 000 000 300 000 000
Retained earnings {85 296 012) {56 277 653)
Total qualifying tier 1 capital 214 703 9688 243 722 347
Less: Regulatory adfustments:
Intongible gssets 15215 870 -
Common equity tier 1 capital 199488118 243 722 347
General impoirments 210 055 1180518
Total qualitying tier 2 capital 210 055 1180518
Total reghfatory capital 199698173 244 902 865
Risk weighted assets:
Credit risk 204 Q31 000 119423 000
Operational risk 28 375 0G0 17216 000
Morket risk 10 040 600 254 060
Total risk weighted assets 242 446 000 136 893 000
Capital adequacy ratios:
Leveroge Capital 53% 85%
Tier 1 risk-bosed copitol satio 82% 178%
Totai risk-based capital ratio a2% 178%

Subsequent ta the director’s opproval of these finoncial stotements and the oudit apinion dated 11 December 2019, it come ta light that the risk weighted ossets
disclosed in this note were incarrect. As o resull, despite comfortahly compiying with olf statutory requirements, the Bank opted to correct the figure which arose
as o result of human error and therefore proceed with the immediate relssue af the financial statements. Consequently, the risk weighted assets have been
corrected and the director’s have autharized the financiol statements for reissue.

OTHER RESERVES - CREDIT RISK RESERVE

Batance as at 1 january 2018 - R
Transfer to retained earnings: Initial adeption of IFRS 9 1938 150 -

Adjusted balance at 1 jonury 2018 11365718
Tronsfer from retained earnings 801 632 -
Balonce as at 31 December 2018 1938150 -
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
COVID-19 has hod significant effect on the economy ord businesses during 2020 as countries had to lock down to stow the infection rate of the virus,

Bank BIC hos o Business Continuity Plan in oction In arder to continue dalivering services as normal end we have nst experienced significont disruption in business
operotions as a result of the COVID-19 eutbreak.

The Bank continues to monitor the impact of COVID-19 on the businass, However, it had no material effect on the Finoncial Statements os at 31 December 2018.

It is likely that COVID-19 will impoct the Bank’s financial perfermance, including credit loss estimate (ECL}, interest and non-interest income for the 2020 financia!
vear,

The bonk estimates that a range approximating 35% of its exposures arising from loons and gdvances to clients might be impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak,
resulting in on increose in the risk of defoult by counter-porties. Most of the loans and advances to clients are collateralised. However, the foir values of the
colloterals ore also expected to be odversely offected by COVID-19. In a worst-case scenario where oll these loans default, management cansiders that lasses could
ameunt to NS 2.7 million os a result of the elevated collateral pledged to the bank.
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291

29,2

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial Instruments

At fair vakue
through profit and

Financial
instruments at

loss amortised cost Nan-flnancial Total
2018
ASSETS
Losh and balances with central hank 11227 389 17 227 389
Baolances due from ather banks 46 516 726 46 516 720
Financial ossets 4931 385 4931 365
Derivatives 2831236 2831236
Leans and cdvences to financlol Institutions 80 366 387 - 80 306 387
Loons and advonces to clisnts - 183604 963 153 604 9563
Other tangible ossets - 18 340 251 18 340 251
Intangible assets 15 215870 15215870
Other ossets 1410285 1470289
28313236 337 997 133 33556 121 374 384 490
LIABILITIES
Depasits from financial Institutions 29 303 860 29 303 860
Loans from financial institutions 82 405 189 82 405 189
Deposlhts from clients 39685 041 38 885 041
Qther obllitles - 6 733 074 469 198 7 142 262
- 157 333 164 409 188 157 742 352
At f2ir valee
threugh profit and Financial
loss - available for Enstruments at
sale amartised cost Non-firancial Fotal
2017
ASSETS
Cash ond bolgnces with centraf bonk 2 354 2oz Z 354 202
Bolances dus from ethar bonks 22 047 638 22 047 638
Finonciol cssets 72274 781 22274 781
Loans and aduances to finoncial institutions 40827 772 40827 772
Laans and advences to cllents - 112 636 421 112636421
Other tangible assets 16 146 913 16 145 973
Intangible gssels 17 920 580 i7 920 580
QOther ossets - 1878408 1 878 408
72274 78% 179 744 441 34 067 493 286 086 715
LIABILITIES
Deposits fram finoncic! institutions 8554851 8554 851
Deposits from clients 24 317495 24 3174395
Other liahikities 4417911 S 17 24392 022
- 41790 257 574111 42 364 368

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an iastitution might not hove sufficient funds to finance its ossets er to honour its commitments without incurring unocceptable fosses.

Liquidity risk management is based on the weekly anolysis of residual maturity dates of the different assets and liabilities of the bolance sheet, showing, for each of the ranges

cansidered, the expected volumes of cosh inflows, as well as the respective liquidity gaps.

The toble below sets out the contractual maturity of cashflows (excluding uneamed interest) for financial ossets and liobilities at year - end:
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29,2 Uguidity risk (Cantinued)

On demand and

up ta 3 months 3-6 months 6-12 months 1-5 years Overh years Non-financial Total
2018
ASSETS
Cash ond balances with centraf bank 11227389 . - - - - 11227 38%
Bolonces due from cther banks 46 516 720 - - - - - 46 516 720
Financlof ssets 4531385 . - - . - 49317 365
Derivotives 2831235 2831236
Loans and advances to finandial Institutions 80 306 387 . - - . - 80 306 387
Loans and advances o clients 48732879 866 452 11 666 602 74255619 58 353 466 (210 855) 192 664 963
Other tangible assets - - . - . 18 340 251 18 340 251
Intanglble assets - - - . . 15215870 15215870
QOther essets 1410293 - - - - - 7410289
195 956 285 866 452 11 606 602 74 255 619 58 353 466 33 346 066 374 384 490
LIABILITIES
Deposits from financial instltutions (29 309 8506} - - - - - {25 369 850)
Loons from financiol institutions {82 405 189) {82 405 189)
Deposits from clients (29 823 745} (7 315 906) {1 665 000) {80 399) - - {38 865 041)
QOther linbilities (7 142 262} - - - - - (7 142 262)
{66 275 86D) (89 721 085) {1 665 000) 180 390) - - {157 742 352)
Net funding gop 729680418 (88 954 643 98415692 24175229 58 353 466 336 066 216642 137
Cumufative liquidity gop 129680418 40825774 50 767 377 124 342 606 183295071 216642 137
On demand and
up to 3 manths 3-6 months 6-12 months 1.5 years Overs yaars Nen-financial Total
2017
ASSETS
Cash ond balances with centraf bank 2354 202 - - . . - 2354 202
Balances due from gther banks 22 047 639 - . - - - 22047 638
Financiol ossets 25717 244 - 46 557 537 - - B 72 274 781
Laans end advances ¢ financlal Institutions 36871772 16 000 000 - - - {44 005) 40827 772
Logns and advances to clients 16 951 344 27 298 13673 058 & 805 673 27115 566 {1 136 518} 112636 421
Gther tanglble ossets - . - - . 16146913 16 146 913
Intanglble assets - - . - - 17 920 580 17 920 580
Cther ossets 1678408 - - - - . i 878408
99 820 508 16627 298 59 630 595 6605673 77115566 32 0086 975 286 0B5 715
LIABIUITIES
Deposits from financial institutions (8 554 851} - - - - - {8554 B51)
Deposits from clients (22 137 678} (748 919) {7 396 522) 34 376) . . (24 317 495)
Other liobilities (9 492 022) - - - - - {9492 022)
{40 194 551} {748 919) {1 396 522) {34 376) - - {42 364 368)
Net funding gop 59636 057 9278375 58234073 6571297 77 115 566 32 686 975 243 722 347
Cumutative liquidity gop 59636 057 66914 436 127 148 509 133719806 210835372 243 722 347 -
Undrawn facllities 2018 2017
Banco BIC Cabo Verde, S.A, 15 660 000 20000 000
Banco BIC Portugués, S.A, 20600 000 20000 000

Banco BIC Cabo Verde, $.A. facilities are denominated in Eure, bear an interest rate of Euribor +1.25%. First draw of the loan waos made on 23 November 2018, for a period of 6
months (181 days}, with on aptien to extent the loan for an additional 5 months.
Banco BIC Portugués S.A. facilities are denomingted in Euro, would en drawdown bear an interest rate of Euribor + 3,5% ond mature on 31/12/2019.

29,3 Marketrisk

Market risk Is tha risk that the foir volue or future cash flows of a finoncial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. Market risk comprises thrae types of
risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Bonk s exposed to bath currency and interest rate risk. Refer to note 27,4 and nete 27,5 for disclosure regarding
thase risks.

29,4 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becouse of changes in the foreign exchonge rates.

The exchange rate risk represents the risk of losses due to adverse variations in exchange rotes. The Bonk pursues a prudent policy of asset ond lobility management in foreign
currency which minimizes the essociated exchonge rate risk, Ongoing hedging of foreign exchange positions in the different currencies is the ohjective,
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29,4

28,5

Currency risk (continued)

2018

ASSETS

Cosh and balances with central bank
Balances due from other bonks
Finonclol ossets

Derivatives

Laans end advances 1o financlal institutions
Loans and advances 6 clients

Other tangible assets

Intangible assets

Other ossets

LIABILITIES

Deposits & loans frem financlal institutions
Deposits from clients

Other flabilities

Ket exposure
Rates of exchange ot 31 December 2018

2017

ASSETS

Cash and belances with central bank
Bolances due from other bonks

Financial assets

Loans and advances te financlal institutions
Loans and advonces to cllents

Other tangible assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

LIABIUTIES

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from clients

Other ilabilities

Net exposure
Rates of exchange ot 31 December 2017

Interest rate risk

NAD EUR uso GBP ZhAR Nen-financial Total
101063 408 173393 158614 36154 754 820 11227389
13 089 354 15100 748 13438 480 919 4 887 220 46 516 720
43831 385 - - 4931385
2831236 2831236
B0 050678 255 709 80 306 387
162 604 953 153 604 963
18 346 251 18 340 251
15215870 15215870
1410289 1414283
306 021313 15274141 13538 094 37072 E 897 745 33 556 121 374 384 490
(3066 517} (96 699 423) {11 949 109} - (111 715 049)
{37 445 924) (59 252) {1339 865) (38 885 047)
{7 030 823) {111 439) - - {7 142 262)
(47 543 264) (96 910 184} {13 298 974} . - - (157 742 352}
258 478 0449 {81 635 973} 309120 a7 072 5 §97 749 33556 121 216 642138

16,46 i4.38 1835 100

NAD EUR UsD GBP ZAR Non-financial Total
2 169 833 69484 1653 397 1662 226 2354202
4951342 12583622 2018 068 a3 2483773 22047 638
72 274 781 72 274781
36 422 365 - 4405 407 40 827 772
HeZ 636421 - - 112 636 421
- 16 146 913 16 146913
- #7920 580 17 820 580
1 878 408 - 1878408
230343 150 12653 106 2128 085 5495 6 883 406 34 657 493 286 086 715
(170 918} {7 167 834) {1215 999) {8 554 851)
(18 353 385) {5 266 253) (697 856) (24 317 495)
{7855 722) (1 536 300} - {9492 622
{26 300 026) {14 070 487) {1 913 855) - . {42 364 368}
203 963 124 {1 447 90¢) 214 210 5 £95 6 984 406 34 067 493 243 722 347

14,77 1232 16.65 1.00

Interest rote risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate.

The Bank incurs on interest rote risk whenever, during the course of its activity, it contracts oparations with future financiol flows thot ore sensitive to possille variotions in the

interest rate.

2018

ASSETS

Cosh and bolonces with central bank
Baionces due from other bonks
Finonclol ossets

Derivatives

Loans end advances to financial institutions
Loans and advances te clients

Other tanglble assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from finencial institutions
Loans fram finonciol institutions
Deposiis from clients

Average
Interest  Expected change  Expected change on
rate profit and less Vatlable rate Flxed rate Hon-Interest sensitive MNon-financlal Total

11227 388 it 227583
1.73% 16 128 701 13870 104 32645618 46 516 720
7.72% 1.6 4931385 4831 385
2831236 - 2831 236
820% 1.0 277047 27 700878 52350 000 - - 80050 678
11,30% 1.0 1936 360 193630018 {25055) 193 604 G563
- - 18 340 251 18240 25¢
- 15215879 15215876
14i1G282 1410289
2 352 aof 235 200 8OO 57 281 385 48 090 475 33 556 121 374 128 781
- - 29 309 866 29 302 860
1.25% 82293 750 ac 293 750
2,70% 1.9 210 409 21040 830 13429034 4415117 - 39 885 041
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29,6

Other fiabiiities

2017

ASSETS

Castr and balonces with centrof bank
Balances due from other banks

Financla} assets

Loons and advances ta financial institutions
Loans and odvances to cllents

Other tangible assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from financial institutions
Deposits from elients

Other fiabifities

Credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk by credit quality

2018

Total expasure (items where credit exposure exists)

Bolance with the central bank
Bolances due from other banks
Financial Assets

Loans and advances to finoncial institutions

Loans and advances to clients

Total exposure {items where credit exposure exists)

Balance with the central bank
Balances due from other banks
Financial Assets

toans and advances to financial institutions

Loans and advances to clients
Overdrafts

Asset finance

Mortgage loans

Cormmercial loans

Personal loons

2017

ASSETS

Cosh ond balonces with central bank
Bolances due from ather banks

Financlal assets

Leans ond odvances te financial Institutions
Loans and advances to clients

Other tanglble assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

- 7142 262 - 7142 262
210 409 21 040 890 95 722 784 40867 238 - 157 630 913
Average
interest  Expected change  Expacted change an
tate % prafit and loss Vartable rate Flxed rate Non-Interest It N (L] Total
- 2354 202 7354202
2,45% 1.0 B3 746 & 274 575 15673 063 22 047 638
851% 1.0 72274781 72214 781
8.20% [ §7 537 9753738 30600 800 1074034 - 40827 772
10.40% 10 Fide 518 1135651 764 {1015 343) 172635421
16146 913 6 146 913
17 920 580 17920 560
- - 1878408 - 1878408
1297 81 129 780 077 102 274 781 19 964 364 34 067 493 286 086 715
- - 8554851 8554851
245% 1.0 118515 i1 651528 2924 925 9541042 24 317 495
44492 022 9492 022
118 5¢5 11 851 §20 2924925 27 507 #15 - 42 364 368
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will defoult on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial loss to the Bank.
2018 2017
397 955 226 468
46 516 720 22 047 638
4931 385 72 274 781
80 306 387 40827 772
193 604 963 112 636 421
2018 -IFRS 8
Carrying amount  Loss allowance Maximum
exposure to
credit risk
397 9h5 - 397 955
46 516 720 - 46 516 720
4931 385 - 4 931 385
80 306 387 - 80 306 387
193815018 210055 193 604 963
60 750 829 65112 60685 717
9551 697 55227 9496 470
13042 550 9361 13033189
109 687 367 71187 109 626 180
772 573 8168 /63 405
Watchispedal
Mention/Substandar
Pass/ Acceplable 4 Doubtful loss tnrated Non-dinanclal Totat
- - 2354202 - 2 354 202
22 047 638 22 047 638
- 72274 781 72274 781
40627 772 - 40 827 772
112 636 421 112836 421
16 146913 16 146 913
- 17920 580 17 920 580
1878408 - 1878408
153 464 193 - 98 555 02% 34 067 493 2496 096 715
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ANNEXURE A: RISK REPORT (UNAUDITED)

The Group engages in commercial banking business by offering traditional and modern retail banking products and services to clients. As a result of being @ new start-up operation,
the Group's short term objective is to achieve break-even point while it prepares to become prafitable over the medium term. Due to these risk-taking activities the Group is exposed
to a variety of risks. The Group therefore adopted meosures to avoid, reduce, transfer and mitigate the risks inherent in doing its business.

The Group is cognisant of the fact that effective risk management is fundamental to business success, To this end it developed a sound and balanced risk management and oversight
structure guided by o Risk Management Policy. The management and oversight structure is resourced with skilled and technical staff befitting not only to the nature and complexity of
the task but also to the accompanying risks. When necessary, resource constraints inherent to the Group’s limited econamies of scale are supplemented through the use of external
experltise.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
The board is ultimately accountable for the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management framework, including all related policies, mandates and risk acceptance, ond
the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control environment. The board established a “three lines of defence” approach. Management forms the first line of defence and serves

as the front-line against existing and emerging risks. The Risk and Compliance function serves as the second line of defence by independently performing risk identification,
monitoring and reporting to the Risk Committee and the Board Risk Committee. Independent assurance providers serve as the third line of defence.

RISK GOVERNANCE AND POLICY STRUCTURE

The board established a robust governance structure to facilitate oversight of the risk management framewark,

Board of Directors

; Board Nominations
Board Credit Council Board Risk Executive Committes Board Audit and Herrierstisn Board Investment

Committee (BCC) Committee (BRC) (EXCO) Committee (BAC) Committes (Remca) Committee (BIC)

Assetand Liability
Management
Committee (ALCO)

Risk Committea Product Development

(Riskeo) Committee (PDC) ITCarmities

The structure s governed by a framework of board-approved policies ond charters. Board and board sub-committees generally convene quarterly and management oversight
committees convene monthly.

To direct the activities of the Graup, the board approved a series of palicies that establish the minimum strategic and operational stondards within which the Group operates. These
include the Risk Management Policy; Credit Risk Policy (related to credit approval and decision-making); Liquidity Risk Management Poficy; Market Risk Management Policy; Complionce
Risk Management Policy; Compliance Risk Management Framework; AML Compliance Policy; AML Compliance Programme; Business Continuity Management Policy; Treasury Policy;
Treasury Limits; Information Technolagy Policy; Human resource policies; Health and Safety Policy; and the Business Continuity Policy.

The Risk and Compliance function assists with the development of centralised policies ond standards. The Chief Risk and Compliance Officer reports to the Risk Committee on a
monthly basis, quorterly to the Board Risk Committee ond has a direct reporting line to the Boord Risk Committee chairman. The Chief Risk and Complionce Officer engages with risk
owners regularly to establish risk culture and accountability, The risk function challenges informatien produced by lines of business.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK ASSESSMENT

The risk management framework follows o 5-step approach that involves the following main activities that are applied to the risk universe: risk identification, risk assessment, risk
control, risk monitoring and risk treatment. The risk universe is managed in terms of the following principal risk structure:

Strategic risk, which includes business strategy, reputation, capitol and sustainability,

Finance and tax risk, which includes accounting, financial reporting, performance and taxation.

Operational risk, which includes business continuity, information, facilities, processes, customers, products, services, legal, financial crime, people and technology.
Compliance risk, which includes regulatory, AML / CTF, conduct af business, governance, reporting ond disclosure. Although compliance risk is technically an
operational risk, for purposes of the principal risk structure it is clossified separately.

Credit risk, which includes sanctioning, collateral, valuation, counterparty risk, concentration and collection.

Treasury risk, which includes market risk and liquidity risk.

Risks Included in the risk register are classified and reported on in terms of the above principal risks. The risk register covers both existing and emerging risks. Residual risk Is regularly

assessed and rated in terms of magnitude of impact and likelihood of occurrence. Risks with high residual risk ratings are classified as top risks and are emphasised in the risk report
submitted to the Risk Committee and the Board Risk Committee. Risk and Compliance assists with the collection of data that supports risk assessments ond risk ratings.
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ANNEXURE A: RISK REPORT (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

RISK APPETITE

The purpose of the risk appetite statement is to orticulote the board's expectations and requirements in terms of risk-taking octivities and decision-moking that will be performed by
directors and management, Risk appetite is divided inta two components: qualitative assertions and guentitative metrics. Metrics ore requiarly measured os part of the risk metric dota
colfection process. Reporting on the qualitative and guontitative risk appetite parometers occurs monthly to the Risk Committee and quarterly to the Board Risk Committee. Risk
appetite is ultimately appreved by the board, typicolly when approving risk manogement policies. Risk uppetite breaches, if any, are escaloted to the Board Risk Commitiee ond finally
to the Board of Directors. Only the board may toke decisions regarding risk acceptance.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

As approved by the Bank of Nomibio, the Group adopted the Basel 1) stondordised approach for credit and market risk and the basic indicator approach for operational risk in terms of
BID 5. The Group is not clossified as a systemically important financial institution. The Group adheres to the minimum capital requirements and possesses o significant capitol buffer
due to the initlol capital Injection received from shareholders. Credit risk constitutes the most significant portion of risk-welghted assets,

Risk-Welghted Assets Minimum 2018 2017
Credit risk 204 031 000 119423 000
Market risk 10 040 000 254 000
Operational risk 28 375 000 17 216 600
Lapital Adequacy

Leverage ratio 6% 53% 85%
Tier 1 risk-based ratio 7% B82% 178%
Totol risk-based ratio 10% B82% 179%

Capital is seen os 0 fust defence ogainst unexpected losses and therefore the Group oims ta maintain capitol that is sufficient not only to meat regulatory requirements, but also its
awn assessment of risks. Untif profitebility Is achieved, the Group intends to cover its accumuloted Josses through its capital buffer. The capital management and capital adequocy
assessment processes aim to accomplish the folfowing (in no porticular order):

Maintain o sound balance to cover accumulated losses while simultaneausly holding sufficient capital to support growth In risk-weighted assets
Adherence to the regidotor’s minimum capital requirements

Safequard the Group's ability to continue as ¢ geing cancern

Transition to o prafit-making stoge where adequote shoreholder returns con be generated

Structura capital in stich a way that the cost of capitol is optimised

Copital is rot regarded as a replacement for sound corporate gavernance of adequate and effective internal control systems.
OPERATIONAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The operational risk framework fs intended to operationalize the risk management framework and execute the 5-step risk management process during day-to-day operations. Much of
the operational risk framework Is centrally coordinated by Risk ond Compliance who also acts as a central repository of risk information and dota. The Group is committed to effective
operational risk monagement as it considers that there are considerable financial and reputational benefits to which it contributes, such as;

Reducing operationof risk incidents and associated financial losses
Strengthening the Group’s brand

Meeting regulatory expectations

Enabling pro-active management and foliow-up of operational deficlencies
Defining ond refining the allocation for the ownership of operatianal risks
Embed eperational risk cwareness culture through fe.g. with training)

Improve the Group's ability to remediote pressing issues with fimited resources

Each busiress unit and branch Is required to monage its operational risks in compliance with the Risk Manogement Palicy. Risk assessments ore conducted on a monthly basis and
follow o tap-down approoch. Risk assessments are supported by the following date gathering pracesses:

Risk metric are quantitative measuremants that support the manitoring of risk appetite and operational and complionce activities in generol. Metrics inchude

key risk indicators, key performance indicators and key control indicators,

Operational loss and neor-miss events are monitored for adverse trends, [iue to limited volumes operational loss events are generally insignificant.

The issue remediation and closure process tracks high impact issues identified by management and issues raised by Intarnal cudit, external oudit and regulators.

Data collected from the above processes are included in risk reporting and form part of the Group’s overall risk nssassment and remediotion processes.

2018 2017
Operatlonal loss volue (NAD) 2 000 1614 00G
Number of metrics 91 70
Number of issues remediated 15 28
Number of open issues carried over 12 13
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ANNEXURE A: RiSK REPORT (UNAUDITED) (Continued)
REPUTATION AND STRATEGIC RISKS

For the 2018 finoncial year a majar focus of the Group was on strategic projects, in particular EFT, card Issting and electronic banking. The lack of a full range of electronic channels
makes it chollenging to meet financiol performance targets. Although progress was mode with the local debit card project, the 2018 financial year is expected to be occupied mainly
with the resolution of cutstonding strategic projects.

The Group’s primary top risk is influenced by the strategic environment and relotes to the continued difficulty experienced with roising domestic depositor funding within the
Namibian market. The lack of o full range of electronic services is seen os the primary contributor to this top risk.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is defined as the potential thot a borrower or counterparty will fail to meet fts obligations in accardance with agreed terms, The goo! of credit risk manogement is to
maxirise the Group’s risk-odjusted rate of return by mointaining credit risk expasure within occeptable parameters, Credit risk is considered one of the most important risks to the
Graup. It emerges through the Josses ond uncertainty over future gains genercted by the toan portfalio, due to the passibility of a defauit on the port of the customer {and guorontor,
when applicable), issuer of a security or counterparty in a contract. Strict and prudent criterio are maintained in the granting of loans so as to preserve the good quolity of the Group's
portfolio as port of the Credit Palicy approved by the board,

Credit risk management Is undertaken by the Credit Department, whose activity is requlated by the principles and rules of granting and manitaring the loons defined In the Credit
Policy. All credit applications are submitted to the Board Credit Council fer approved, No other person or committee has any credit mandates.

Credit Rlsk Profile 2018 2017
Lredit loss ratie (% of advances) 0% 0%
Non-performance loans (% of advances) 0% 0%
Arrears {% of advances) 0% 0%
Specific impoirments (% of advances) 0% 0%

For purpeses of determining credit risk-weighted assets the Group does not net loans or advances agoinst fiabilities from the same client. Colloterat used in credit operations primarity
constitute property mortgoges, cession of instrance policies and cash securities ond valuation is based on the best fair value estimate of the collateral. The bank does not trade in
credit derivatives. Besides loans ond advances to clients the Group's main credit counterparties are the Government of Namibiia ond the Namibian interbank market. Loons ond
advances ore ot granted beyond the harders of Nomibia,

Although the Group has credit concentrotion risk in the central and coastal region of Namibia and in the fishing, construction, real estate, ond catering industries, it intends to diversify
these exposures as the credit haok grows. The Group's significant capital buffer serves os defence ggainst unexpected credit losses and as a result credit risk stress testing is still
limited. The Group intends to develop more saphisticated strass testing gnd scenario analysis as more resources bacome avoilable and the saphistication of tha credit book increases.

MARKET RISK

Market risk Is the exposure to odverse fluctuations in the price or value of an instrument traded or held gs an investment, including risk ossociated with re-pricing, yield curve, basis
ond aptions. The Group dees not toke speculative positions and uses derivatives only for the purpose of hedging open positions, The Group's market risk primarfly grises in the form of
interest rata risk and currency risk,

INTEREST RATE RISK

interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in interest rates. The baok of interest-sensitive gssets and lighilities is seen os asset-sensitive since In general more ossets are
sensitive to re-pricing compored to liabitities. The Group expects floating interest rates to remain stable. If interest rates increase the Group stands to benefit fram the Increase die to
its asset-sensitive varioble rate exposures,

Basis risk represents the risk that changes In the price of a hedge position does not match the change in the price of the position it hedges, and/or the change in price bosis or sprend
between two rates or indices changes, e.g. the price of on asset does not chonge in the same manner os change in fiability, or the spread between the funding ond lending rate
changes. The imperfect correlotion between the two crentes o potentiol for excess goins or Josses in a hedging strotegy, thus adding risk to the position. Both interest rate risk and
bosis risk are monitored by ALCG on o monthly basis.

CURRENCY RISK
Currency risk arises from fluctuations within the currency market. The Group adopts @ neutrol policy whereby all transactions giving rise to currency risk are immediately hedged. For
the financiol year foreign currency trade volumes were relatively Jow. The boord sets specific limits for open positions, which is monitored by ALCO and Finance. The Greup complied

with its internal limits.

The Group is primarily exposed to USD, EUR ond GBP as a result of custamer foreign currency (CFC) accounts ond loans granted by related entities in the wider Banco BIC Group.

LIQUIDITY RiSK

Liquidity risk relates to the potential that the Group moy be unable to meet its obligations as they become due. Liquidity risk is monaged in terms of controctugl maturity mismatches
os reflected by the Grotp’s maturity ladder of assats and linblifities, The Group intends to develop o behaviatir onalysis of liquidity mismatches to supplement the existing contractual
mismatch approach. The Liquidity Risk Management Policy as approved by the boord is bosed on canservative criteria that oim 1o ensure adequate liquidity levels to cover the Group’s
needs, to comply with liquid asset requiremnents ond to coter for unplanned cash outflows.
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Operationally, liguidity is monitored on a doily basis by the Treasurer who reports 1o the Financial Manager and CEO. The Financiol Manager and Treosurer are respansible for
axecuting decisions taken by ALCO. They provide ALCO and the toord with sufficient and accurate information on the current economic climate and the state of affoirs of the Group’s
deposits, loans and liquidity risk exposure. Oversight of liquidity risk has been implemented as follows:

ALCO is responsible for monthly monitoring as per the requirements of the board-approved ALLO Chorter,

The Risk Committee is responsible for noting of key outcomes and risks associated with liquidity and to challenge actions taken by ALCG to remedy issues.
The Boord Risk Committee is responsible for board-level oversight of liquidity risk and reporting to the board on material motters.

The Boord of Diractors approves the liquidity risk appetite, policies, limits, torgats ond guidelines, as well as approving ony risk acceptance that may toke place.

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

Deviotions from the Liquidity Risk Monagement Policy end any materiolly adverse changes to the liguidity risk expesure are dealt with by the Centingency Funding Planning team as
described in the liquidity policy,

In terms of contingency lines of funding, the Group possesses the following standby facilities available from reloted porties. Currency risk exposure created by utilising these stondby
facilities are fully hedged through forward exchange agreements,

Standby facilities Totai EUR Utilised EUR Available EUR
Banco BIC Portugués, 5.A, 20 006 000 - 20 000 000
Bonco BiC Cabo Verde, S.A. 20 000 000 5000 000 15 000 000

The Group is in the process of developing liquidity risk stress testing for purpases of enhancing ALLO oversight of liquidity risk.
FINANCE AND TAX RISK

The implementation of strateglc projects is planned to put the Group on trock to meet its finoncia! performance targets. The Group possesses a significant capital buffer that is
intended to absorb start-up operating losses until such time that breok-even can be achisved.

QPERATIONAL RISKS

As ane of the Group's principal risks, operational risk is defined es the risk of financial losses resulting from failures or inadequadles in the information systems, internal processes and
persons, or 05 @ consequence of external factors, Operational risk includes legal risk, but excludes reputation and strotegic risks. The Group s expased to a wide voriety of aperational
risks,

Projects

Project delivery Is impacted by the Group’s limited econcmies of scole and consequent dependency on external vendors. Projects are carefully prioritised, which moy sometimes result
in delays in ather areos. A significent portion of the Group’s activities remain focussed on strategic stort-tp profects,

Business Continudty

Business continuity management {BCM) accurs in terms of o board-approved Business Continuity Palicy, which requires the development of both a Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and
Disaster Racovery Policy ard Plan (DRP). Although o BCP hos been created, it has not yet been tested. The DRP is in development. The Graup oims ta conduct disaster recavery testing
at Jeast once per onnum, A partial disaster recovery failover test of specific key systems wos performed and the Group Js working towords creating a full scepe testing capobility.

People Risk

Due to limited ecancmies of scole specific succession planning risks exist, but suppart from Banco BIC Angela ond Bonco BIC Portugal moy be called upon in case of need,

Workforce 2018 2017
Authorised heod count 50 38
Actual head count 37 EY

Authorised head count makes provision for the implementation of retoll bronches that are underwoy.
Financial Crime Risk

Due to the fock of electronic channels the Group’s exposure te financiol crime risk is low. Instances of other types of criminal activities, both internal and extermnol, have been limited,

Legal Risk

The services of Engling, Stritter and Portners are utifised for ol legal matters.

Compiiance Risk

The Group maintoins o compllance universe that serves as the foundotion for its compliance oversight efforts ond further assesses the degree of compliance through the use of
compliance risk mancgement plons for key ond core legisiation. This process s still at an early stoge, which Is commensurate with the maturity of the overall complionce process and

availehle resources. New legislation and changes te existing legislation are regulorly communicated to management and also included in monthly complionce reporting to the Risk
Commitlee.

Page 46



BANK BIC NAMIBEA LTD

REGISTRATION NUMBER : 2015/0682

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
{Amounts expressed in Namibia Dollar {NS$}, unless otherwise indicated)

ANNEXURE A: RISK REPORT (UNAUDITED) {Continued)

Compliance Risk {Continued)

The board-approved AMU/CTF complionce programime is reviewed annuolly. Customer due ditigence occurs for rew clients and transactions within the bBranches and departments
where they originate. The Group utifises the Argus AML system that integrates with the core banking system te monitor transactions. Suspicious transaction raports are regularly
submitted to the Financiol Intefligence Centre within the required deadiines. Sanction screening is conducted on correspondent banks and high risk chients,

Technology Risk

The core bonking system and supporting systems reside in Namibla. The Grotp outsowrces part of the IT function to Banco BIC Angola and Bonco BIC Portugal which is arranged
through formal written agreements. The top focus areas of technology risk include addressing gops identified by the informotion security interal audit os part of continuous
fmprovement, timely management of IT service delivery by the different vendors and the development of a comprehensive IT policy framework that adapts to the ahgoing changes in
the operoting environment,

Insurance

Short term insurance cover underwritten by Santam Namibia is in place for damages, theft, crime and civil liobifity, Joss of documents, legol costs, wrongful arrest, emplayers’ liability
ond other general cloims.
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